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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion . )

We have audited the financial statements of Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited (the
“Company”), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2022, and the statement of profit and
loss (including other comprehensive income), statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
E .nforcsmd financial statements give the information reyuired by the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) in Lhe
-~ - ‘manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
- accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as-at 31 March 2022, and its profit and &ther

: comprehenslve mecome, changes in cquity and its cash flows for the year ended on (al date.

.]]ams for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) spevified vnder Seclion -

- 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finoncial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thercunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with. these requirements and the Code of Ethics.

- Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
.. comprises the information included in the Director’s report, but does not include the financial
" statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The Director’s report is expected to be made available to

- s after the date of this audjtor’s report, -

- Out opinion on the ﬁnanc:al statem ents does not cover the other information and we do not express any
" form of assurance conclusmn ‘thereon. :

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in Section
134(3) of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs, profit/loss and other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility
also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error., '

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going cancern, disclosing, as applicable, matters retated
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors ejther
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors js also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reponing Process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
uicludes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high Jevel of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists,
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professicnal judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» * Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to

- fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain andit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control. '

. ®  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
- that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3Xi) of the Act, we are also
_responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financia)
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, '

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of Directors.
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

Independent Auditer’s Report (continued)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financia) Statements {continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the andit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to contnme as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where appllcable related -
safeguards

' Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requ:rements
1.

Asrequired by the Compames (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central .
Government of India in terms of Section 143 (11} of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

(A) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a}) We have sought and obtained al} the information and explanations which to the best: of
' our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive
income), the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid f'nancml statements comply with the Ind AS specified under
- Section 133 of the Act.

- €) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31 March
2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, nene of the directors is disqualified as
on 31 March 2022 from being appomted as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the
Act.

fy With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operatlnfr effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexu;e B”.
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Ruoles, 2014, in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

a) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at 31 March 2022 on its
: financial position In its financial statements - Refer Note 33(b) to the financial statements.

b} The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

¢} There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

d) (i) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other
persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

= directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
 manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) by or on behalf of the Company
ar '

.= provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

'(ii). The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no

' funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities, including

foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Company shall:

n -directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or cntities identified in any
- manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the. Funding
Party or _
= provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries.

(iii) Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
- circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-
statement. '

e) The Compary has neither declared nor paid any dividend during the year.

M
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements (continued)

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of
the Act:

- In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
Is not a public company. Accordingly, the provisions of Section 197 of the Act are not
applicable to the Cornpany. :

for BSR & Co. LLP
Chartered Acco untants
Firm’s registration number: 101248W/W-100022

m/\%l*‘/_

Amrit Bhan'sa_li
Partrer :
Membership number: 065155

UDIN: 22065155ATHXAX5695

Place: Bengaluru
Détc: 2 May 2022
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements of the
Independent Auditors ' Report to the members the Company on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2022, we report that:

) (@

(0

(d)

(e)

i (2

®)

(i)

(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and sitnation of Property, Piant and Equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification
of'its Property, Plant and Equipment by which all property, plant and equipment are verified in a
phased manner over a period of two years. In accordance with this programme, certain property,
plant and equipment were verified during the year. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical
verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
No discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

The Cun.npa'ny does 1ol have uny immovable property (other than properties where the cbmpany
i3 the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee). Accordingly,
clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanatioﬁq given to us and on the hasis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equ1pment
(including Right of Use assets) or intangible assels or both during the year.

According to information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company
for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act,
1988 and rules made thereunder. :

The inventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion,
the frequency of such verification is reasonable and procedures and coverage as followed by
management were appropriate. No discrepancies were noticed on verification between the
physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10% in the ‘aggregate of each class of
inventory.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in
-excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, from banks on the basis of security of current assets.
In cur opinion, the quarterly returns or statements filed by the Company with such banks are in
agreement with the books of account of the Company. The Company does not have any working

~ capital limit from financial institutions.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not made investments in, provided any security

or granted advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, limited

liability partnership or any other parties during the year. The Company has provided guarantee
to companies during the year, in respect of which the requisite information is as below. The
Company has not provided any guarantee to limited liability partnership or any other parties
during the vear. :
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Dusters Total
Solutions Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(a)

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and as per the information and explanations given
1o us, the Company has provided guarantee to any other entity as below:

Particulars Guarantees
{In INR

_ millions)
Aggregate amount during the year 3.5
-~ Subsidiary
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet
date
- Subsidiary . Nil

- (b) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures

(©)

conducted by us, in our opinion the guarantees provided during the year are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company has not gwen any loan or advance in the nature of loan to any party
during the year.

{d) Acccrdmg to the infonnat-ion---and-'-ex-planations- given to us and on the basis of our examination of

(e)

(iv).

the records of the Company, there is no loan or advance in the nature of loan falling due during
the vear, which has been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of
existing loans given to same parties.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans either repayable on demand or withoul specifying any lerms or period of repaymernl.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

the records of the Company, the Company has neither made any investments nor has it given loans,
or provided security as specified under Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the

- Act”). Inrespect of the guarantees given by the Company, in our opinion the provisions of Section

. (V)

(v1)

i) (@)

186 of the Act have been complied with.

. The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from

the public. Accordingly, clause 3{v} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Governiment has not
prescribed the maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act for the services
provided by it. Accordingly, clause 3(vi} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in our opinion amounts deducted / acerued in the books of account
in respect of undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services Tax (“GST?), Provident fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues have generally been
regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities, though there have been slight delays in a few
cases of GST, Provident fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax. As explained to us, the

Company did not have any dues on account of Duty of Customs. The Company does not have

hability in respect of Service tax, Duty of excise, Sales tax and Value added tax during the year
since effective I' July 2017, these statutory dues has been subsumed into GST.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Dusters Total
Solutions Services ’rivate Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

(b)

(viii).

(%) @
(b)
©
(@)

©

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Goods and Services Tax
(*GST?), Provident fund, Income-Tax, Cess and other statutory dues were in arrears as at 31 March

2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable, except an amount

of Rs 778,319 payable in respect of Employees’ State Insurance.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there are no statutory dues relating to Goods and Service Tax,
Provident Fund, Employees State Insurance, or Cess or other statutory dues, which have not been
deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute. However, according to the
information and explanations given 1o us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the
Company, statutory dues relating to Income-Tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute are as foilows:

Name of the statute| Nature of the Amount Period to Forum where
dues {In INR which the | dispute is pending
- millions) amount

: relates
Income-tax Act, Income-tax 1.46 2010-11 | CIT (Appeals),
1961 ' . Bengaluru
Income-tax Act, Income-tax 1.60 2012-13 | CIT {Appeals)},
1961 ' Bengaluru
Income-tax Act, Income-tax 1492 | 2012-13 | High Court,
1961 ' Bengaluru

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed amy transactions,
previously unrecorded as income in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the vear.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to banks during the year. The Company did not
have any outstanding loans or borrowings from any other lender during the year.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter by any bank or
finaneial institution or government authority. -

According to the information and exp]ana;[ions given to us by the management, the Company has
not obtained any term loans during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(ix)c) of the Order is not
applicable.

According to the information and explanations given 1o us and on an overall examinalion of the
balance sheet of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used
for long-term purposes by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiary as defined under the
Act. The Company does not have any asscciate or joint venture.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Dusters Total
Solutions Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 (continued)

o)

(x) (a)
(b)
(xi) (2)

(by

(c)

- (xii)-

(xiii)

According to the informaticn and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we
report that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiary (as defined under the Act). The Company does not hold investment in any associate or

‘joint venture (as defined under the Act) during the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x){a) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year. Accmd:ngly, clavse
3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable,

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information
and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company has been
noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by the auditors in Form ADY[-4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

Based on the information and explanations provided to us, the Company does not have a vigil

“mechanism and is not required to have a vigil mechanism as per the Act or SEBI (Listing

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company.
Accordingly, clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private limited company and accordingly the requirements as stipulated by the
provisions of Section 177 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. In our opinion and
according to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of ovr examination of
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with Section 188
of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial
statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv}). (a) Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion,

(b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

()

the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

We have.considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under
audit,

~In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has

not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors
and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registercd under Scction 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934, Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Urder is not applicable.

The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-TA of ihe Reserve Bauk of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable. ' .

(c) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the

(d)

Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi)(c_) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company is not part of any group (as per the provisions of the Core Investment Companies
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 as amended). Accordingly, the requirements of clause 3(xvi)(d)
are not applicabie.
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’s report on the financial statements of Pusters Total
Solutions Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022 (cantinued)

- {(xvil)

(xviif) -

(x1%)

The Company has not incorred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding
financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause

3(xviil) ofthe Order is not appllcablc

Accarding to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilittes, our
knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is
not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get
discharged by the Company as and when they fall duoe.

Also refer to the Other Inform_ation paragraph of our main audit report which explains that the
other information comprising the information included in Director’s report is expected to be made

available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

(xx) (a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent amount to a Fund

specified in Schedule VII to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial

- year in compliance with second proviso to sub-section {5) of Section 135 of the said Act

~(b) 1In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there 1s no unspent

amount under sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Act pursuant to any ongoing pl‘O_]eCt
Accordingly, clause 3(xx)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

forBSR & Co. LLP
~ Chartered Accountanits
- Firm Registration Number: 101248 W/W-100022

whr

Arhrit Bhansali

Partner

* Membership No: 065155 _
ICAT UDIN: 22065155AIHXAX5695

Place: Bengalluru
Date: 2 May 2022
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ report on the financial statements of Dusters Total
Solutions Services Private Limited for the year ended 31 March 2022

Repaort on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
- under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 :

(Referred to in paragraph 2 (A) (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Opinion

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Dusters Total
Solutions Services Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31 March 2022 in conjunction with our audit
of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

" In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2022, based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issved by the Institute
-of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

_ Management’s RBS]]OI!Slhlllty fur Internal Financial Controls

The Company $ management and the Board of Directors are responmble for establishing and
~ maintaining jnternal financial controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the
safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
‘required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act™).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financijal statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financjal statements. Those
- .Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
-perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated
effectwely in all material respects,

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of
. internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding’
of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
~ evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditer’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditdr‘s’ report (continned)
Auditors’ Responsibility (continued)

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements..

Meaning of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financia) Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accountin g principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements inchide those policies and
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
- reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,
use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitéﬁons of Internal Financial controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statéements, =
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
‘misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation -
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
‘because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate. : . :

for BSR & Co. LLP
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Balance Sheet
Particulars Note No. | As at March 31, 2022 | As at March 31, 2021
A [ASSEIS
Non - current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 191.04 180.87
Goodwill 4 77.54 77.54
Other intangible asscts 4 11.75 15.68
Financial assets
{i} Investments 5 19.29 19.28
(ify Other non-cwrrent financial assets 6 25.02 22.99
Deferred tax assets (net) 7 284.50 187.88
Income tax assets (net) 7 44%.09 290.42
Total non - current assets 1,058.23 794.66
Current assets
Inventorjes 9 3.63 -
Financial assets
(it Trade receivables 10 1,525.96 1,218.08
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents 11 566.81 546.72
(iii) Other current financial assets 6 578.41 365.21
-|[Other current assets 8 3948 27.11
Total current assets 2,714.59 2,157.12
Total assets 3,772.82 2,951.78
B |BQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 12 28.02 28.02
Other equity 13 2,098.76 1,736.50
Total eguity 2,126.78 1,764.52
Liabilities ; )
Non — current liahilities )
Financial Habilities .
| (i) Borrowings, ‘14 - -
' (ia) T.ease liabilities - 15 28.78 30.38
IProvisions 19 188.84 84.96
Total nen-cerrent liabilities 217,62 115,34
Current liabilities ]
Financial liahilities
{i} Borrowings 14 254.94 0.81
(ia} Leasc liabilities 15 21.54 |, 14.23
(ii) Trade payables
() Total outstanding dues of micre enterprlses and small 1 6 7.39 1.56
enterpriges
{b) Tntzl!l outstanding dues of’ creditors other than micro 16 9735 76.13
enterprises and small enterprises .
(iii) Other current financial liabilities 17 662.85 605.44
|Other current liabilities 20 267.59 22579
Provisions 19 116.76 145.96
Total current liahilities 1,428.42 1,071.92 |
Total liakilities 1,646.04 1,187.26 |
Total equity and Habilitles 3,772.82 2,951.78

~ The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

~ As per our report of even date

"ForBS R & Co.LLP
Chartered Accoumtants

Membershlp No, 065155
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Date: May 02, 2022
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Managing Director
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" Director :
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Statement of Profit and Loss

Year ended
S No |Particulary Note No.
March 31,2022 |  Mareh 31, 2021
Income
1 a)  Revenue from operations 22 8,356.10 707317
b) Other income 23 23.28 1548
¢} Other gain/(loss} 24 - 0.04
Total Income {a+ b +¢) 5,379.38 7088 69
Expenses ]
a} Cost of materials consumed 25 118.49 115.06
B) Purchases of stock-in-trade 11.49 -
) ¢} Changes in inventories of stock - in- trade 26 : {3.93) -
i d) Bmployee benefits expense 27 - 7,348.39 6,265.42
€) Finance costs o 28 34.01 1536
f}  Depreciation and amortization expenses 29 66.96 6781
g)  Other expenses 30 495.80 443.01
Total expenses (a +b+c+d+e tg) 8,071.21 6,911.66
3 |Profit before tax and exceptional items {1-2) 308.17 177.03
4 |Exceptional items - -
5 |Profit before tax (3+4) 308.17 177.03
6 |Tax expense
a} {orent tax 7 - Q.39
b) Deferréd tax 7 {85.92) 104,71
. {Total tax expense {85.92)] . 105.10
7 | Profit for the year (5-6) 394.09 | 71.93
g |Other comprehensive income
" " [items that will not be reclassified to profit or foss:
a) Re-measwrement of defined benefits plan 27 (42.53) (12.26)
b) Income tax relating to thess items 7 10.70 .09 |
Other comprehensive income / {loss) for the year (net of taxes) (31.33)| {9.17}
9 |Total comprehensive income for the year (748) 362.26 62.76
10 |Earnings per share (EP ) {face value INR 10 per share) 31
fa) Basic (INR) 140.66 25.67
(b) Diluted (INR) 140.66 2567
IT |Weighted average equity shares wsed in computing earnings per equity sha:c 31 ]
{a)  Basic (Nor.) 2,801,666 | 2,801,666
(b) Diluted (Nos.) 2,801,666 2,801,666

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

~FarB SR & Co. LLP
:Chartered Accountants

gistration. No, 101248 W/W-100022

paniahs,

rit Bhansali . S Shamsher Pari’

er o ) Managing Pirector

" Membership No. 065155 - DIN: 01483698
Pluce: Bunpalore Place: New Delhi

Date: May 02, 2022 : " Date: May 02, 2022

d o8 behalf of the Board of Directors

BIN: 00066899
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Statement of Cash Flows

Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

S NqParticulars

‘A, ICASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit befors tax 30817 177.03
Adjusted for: '
Depreciation snd amortization cxpenses ) 66.96 67.81
Net (grin) / [oss on sale of propetty, plant and equipment - {0.04)
Finance costs ) 34.01 15.36
Interesi income classified a5 investing cash flows (23.28) {15.48)
Allowance for expected credit loss 0.04 . 64.91

" 1O perating profit / (loss) before working capital changes 385.90 309.59
Movement in werking capital:
Decrease f (increase} in trade receivables {307.92) 210.55
Decrease / (increase) in inveniorics {3.93) -
Decrease / {increase) in other ¢urrent assets {12.37) 0.32
Decrease / (increase) in other current financial assets {213.94)| . 131.05
{Decrease) / increase in trade payables 25.05 {8.35)
{Decrease) /increase in provisions : 32.15 " 35.18
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities 41.80 - {31.15)
(Decrease) / increase in other current financial liabilities . 66.08 {23.84)
Dhecrease / {increase) in other non-current financial assets . . {0.54) 2.33
Cash (usedin)/generated from operations . . 12.28 625.68
Direct tax (paid), net of refunds B : {158.67) {64.33)
Met cash inflow / (ouiflow) lrom operating activities ) (146.3%) 561.35

"} B. |CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVIIIES

?urch‘ase of property plant and equipment, changes in capital work-in-progress and (s s'. 62) 210 4'}
intangible assets
Proceeds from sale / disposal of property, plant and equipment 0.03 0.19
Investment in subsidiary : - (9.31)
{Investment in) / redemption of fixed deposits (0.01) (0.03)
Interest received 22.53 1117
Net cash inflow / (ontflow) from investing activities (36.07) (19.52)|
C. |CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of term loans . (0.81) (1.11}
Intergst paid {28.32) (9.53)
Changes in lease liability ) {22,76) (21.99})
Nef cash inflow / {outflow) from financing activities (53_.99) !32.65!
D. [Netincrease / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {(A+B+) {234.85) 509.18
E |Cash and cash equivelents at the beginning of the year 546.72 37.54
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (D+E) 311.87 546.72

" |Reconciliation of cagh and cash equivalents us per the statement of the cash flows .
Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following: March 31,2022 | - March 31, 2021

Cash and cash equivalents ' 566.81 546.72
Cash credit {254.94) -
Balances as per statement of cash flows . 311.87 546.72

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

As per our report of even date

ForBE SR & Co. LLP Fof ajd on behalfql‘:the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountanis [

m’s Fegstration. Mo, 101248 W/W-100022
1
“Dhiraj S{ngh

t Bhansali Shimsher Puri
Parther Maraging Director © Diirector
. Membership No. 065155 DIN: (1483598 DIN: 03656899
- Place: Bangalore Place: New Delhi
. Date; May 02, 2022 Date: May G2, 2022
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Notes to the financial statcments

}. Company overview
Dustess Total Solutions Services Private Limited (*the Company®) is a company limited by shares, incorporated and domicited in Indis. The Company is a
Private Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 on May 8, 2007. Its registered office and principal place of business
is situated at # 332/1, Corporate Miller, 3 Floor, Thirmnaizh Road, Vasanth Nagar, Bangalore, Kamataka — 560 052

The company is engaged o the business of providiog facility management services across industry verticals.
These financial statements were authorized For issue by the Board of Directors on May 02, 2022,

1. Summary of significant accounting policies
Thisaote provides a Yist of significant accounting policies adopted in ihe preparation of these Ainancial statements.

21. Basisof preparatwn
These financial statements are prepared in amordancc with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind-AS} and comply in all material respecits with the Ind-AS and

other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Companies Act™). The Ind-AS are notified vnder Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The Ministty of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule ITI of the Companies Act, 2013 and the amendments are applicable for
financial periods commencing from April 1, 2021, The Company has evaluated the effect of the amendments on its financial statements and complied with
the same.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (TNR) and are rounded off to the nearsst millions (“Mn”) except per share data and unless stated
otherwise. Due to roumding off, the numbers presented throughout the document may not add up precisely to the totals and percentages may not precnse]y
reflect the absalute figures.

2.2, Basis of measurement )
The financial statements have been preparad under the historical cost convention on an sceroal and going concern besis, except for the following material
items which have been measured at fair value as required by refevant Ind-AS:
i) Certaits financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative financial instroments) and contingent consideration that are messured at fair
valuz,
ii) Assets held for distribution to owners upcrl demerger that are held at lower of canrying cost and fair value less cost to distribute,

iii} Share based payments; and
iv) The defined benefit asset/{liability) Whlch is recognised as the present value of defined benefit obligation less fair valué of p!an assets.

Accounting policies have been applied consistently to all perfods presented in these financial statements. Further, previous year Figures have been regrouped/
re-atranged, wherever necessary.

The financial statements are based on the classification provisions contained in Ind AS 1, ‘Presentation of Financial Statemants’ and division Il of schedule
13 of the Compandes Act 201 3. For the purpose of clarity, various items are aggregated in the statements of profit and loss and balance sheet, These items
ar¢ disagpregated separately in the notes to the financial statements, where applicable or required.

Fair value measurement
The Company records certain financial assets and liabilities af fair value on a recurring basis. The Comparny determines fair value based on the price it would

receive 10 sell an asset or pay 10 transfer a liability in an ordetly transaction between market participants at the measurement date and in the principal or
most advantageons market for that asset or liability,

Fair value hierarchy .

Level [ - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for idetsical assets or liabilities. Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using
quoted prices. This mcludes listed equety instroments, bonds and debegtures and nurtual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all financial
instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing price as at the reporting period.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either dicectly (L.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices). The fair value of financial instruments that.are not traded in an active market is determined using vafuation technigues which
maximize the use of obsarvahle markel data and rely as Tittle as possible on endity specific estimates. If all significant inpuls requlred to fair value
an instrument are observable, the ingtrument is included in level 2.

. - Level3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable markat data (uncbservable jnputs). If one or more of the significant inputs is not
. based en observable market data, the instrument is included in Jevel 3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in level 3.

In accordance with Ind-AS 113, ‘Fair value measurernent” assets and liabilities are to be measured based on the following valuation techniques:

(i)  Market approach — Prices and other relevant information generated by market transaclions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.
{iiy Income approach — Converting the future amounts based on market expectations to ifs present value using the discounting method.
(i) Cost approach — Replacement cost method.

o
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2.3. Summary of signifieant accounting policies

a) Current versus non-¢orrent classification
The Coropany presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-corment classification. An asset is classified as current when it
is:
() Expected to be realised or imtended 10 be sold or consutned in the normai operating eycle
(i) Hetd primarily for the purpose of trading
(iti) Expected to be realised within twelve manths after the reporting period, or
- (iv) Cash or eash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged ar used to setife a liabitity for at least twelve months after the reporiing

peried
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A'lisbility is chassified current when:
(i} Itisexpected o be settled in the normal operating cycle
(ii} Itisheld primarily for the purpose of trading
(iil) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting peried, or
(i¥) There is no unconditional right o defer the settlemcnt of the liabibity for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
(v) Temnsofa liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, resuft in its setilement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect jis classification.

The Company ¢lassifies all other léabilities as non-cumrent. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

b)  Property, plant and egnipment

Recognition and meassrement .
An item is recognised as en asset, if and only if, # is probable 1hat the future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its
cost can be measured reliably. Items of property, plant and equipment (“FPE"} are inifially recognised at cost. Frechold iand is carried at historical cost. Al
other items of property, pfant and equipment are measured at cost less accumnalated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost comprises the purchase
price, asset retirement obligation and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any tmde discoums and
rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase pmc Generol and speeific borrowing ¢osts directly ansibutable tw Uie constiuction of u quadilying auset

are capitalised as part of the cost.

Subsiquent expenddilute reluled to i item of propesty, plant and equipment is added to its carrymg value only when it increases the future benefits fiom the
existing asset beyond ils previously assessed standard or period of performance. All other expenses on existing property, plant and equipment, including
day-to-day repairs, maintenance expenditure snd cost of replacing parts, are charged to the statement of profit and loss for the year during which such
expenses are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment under construction and cost of assets not ready for uss at the year-vad uee disclosed a8 enpital work- itis progress.

Depreciation

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful lives using the straight line method from the date, the assets are available
for use. Assets acquired under finance lenss are depreciated aver the asset's useful life or over the shorter of the estimated wsefinl Jife of the asset and the
related leage terin if there is no reazorable cerlninty that the Compamy will obtnin swnczship at the cnd of the lease tecu.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Category DUseful life

Plant and machinery 7 years

Leaschold improvement Shorter of usefut life or leass pericd
Right-of-use assets . Lease period

Computer equipment 3-6years

Fumniture and fixtures 10 years

Office equipment 5 years

Vehicles 8 years

Based on technical assessment, the useful lives as given above best represent the period over which the management expects to use these assets, The
estimated usefuf lives for these assets may therefore be different from the useful lives prescribed under Part C of Schedule 1T of the Companies Act 2013.

'* The residual valuss are generally not more than 5% of the original cost of the asset, The asset’s residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation
-of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted prospectively, i€ appropriate.

Additions are depreciatéd on & pro-rata basis from the date, the asset is available for use il the date the assets are derecognised.

An itein of property, plant and equipoient and any significant part initially récognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no firture economic benefits
- are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset {calculated as the difference between the net dlsposal proceeds

and the carrying amouni of the asset} is recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised,

¢ Investment properties

-Property that is held for fong-term rental yields or for capital appreciation ar both, and thal is not occupied by the Company, is classified as investment
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. '

The cost inctudes bormowing costs for ong-term construction projects if the recognition criteria are met. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised to the asset's
cartying amount oaky when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the expenditure witl flow to the Company and the cost of such
expenditure can be measured teliably. Al? ether repair and maintenance cosis are racognised in statement of profit and loss as incurred. When part of an

investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. .

Investment properties are derecognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic
benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in the period of derecogmition.

d}  Inizngible assets

Recognition and measurement
Intangible assets are recopnised when the Company contmols the asset, it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow to the

Company and the cost of the assel can be measured reliably. Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at historical cost, The
cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair vatue at the date of acquisition.

Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accnmulated amortisation and eceumalated impairment losses, Internally generated
intangibies excluding captialised software development costs are not capitalised and the related expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and foss
in the peried in which the expenditure is incurred.

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the fiture economic benefits from the specific asset to which it relates,

The usefi] lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite Hves are amortised over the useful economic life
o0 a straight-line method and assessed for impainnent whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortsation method for sn intangile asset with & finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of each reporiing period. Changes in the expected
useful Life ot the expected pattem of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the amortisation peried or
method, a5 appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates and adjusted accordingly. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with
finile lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The estimated useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Category Useful life
Goodwill Indefinite
Computer software 6 years

Gains or [osses arising from derécognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derccognised.

Sofiware
Costs incurred in developing products or systens and cosis ineurred in acquiring software and licenses that will contribute to firturs period financial benefits
through revenue generation andror cost reduction are capitalised to software and systems. Costs capitalised include sxternal direct costs of materials, services,

and direct payrol] and related costs of employees’ time spent on the project.

€) Investonent in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
A subsidiaty is an entity over which the Company has control, The Company controls an investes entity when it is exposed to or has rights te variable returns
feom its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returs through its power over the entity,

An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power io participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint contrel of those policies. This is generally the case where the Company holds between 209 and

50% of the voting rights,

A joint venture is a type of joint amangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assats of the Joine ventyra,
Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an amangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities require the

unanioious consent of the parties sharing control.

The considerations made in determining whether significant influenée or joint control are sigilar to those necessary to determine control over the
subsidiaries. :

Tnvestments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures is accounted for at cost less impairment loss, if any. The said investments are testad for impairment
‘whenever cireumstances indicate that theit cartying value may exceed the recoverable amount.

f)  Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial agsets
Initial recognition and measurement

- All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair vatue through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are aitribuiable 10 the acquisition of the financial asset. Puschases or sales of financial assets that requice delivery of assets within atime frame estzblished
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by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the asset.

Subseguent measurement
For pumposes of subsequent measurement, financial assefs are classified in four categories;
(i) TFinancial assets at amortised cost
(iiy Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCT)
(iif) Financial assets, derivatives and equify instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
{(iv) Equity instruments measured a1 fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCT

Financiz instruments at amortised cost
A ‘financial assets’ is measured at the amzortised cost if both the following conditions are met
(i) The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
(i} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principatl

amount outstanding.

After initial mezsurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amartised cost using the effective interest rate (E[R) method. EIR is the rate
that exactly discounts estimaicd future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the gross camrying amount of a financial asset. When
calculating EiR, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the finaricial instrument {for example,
prepayments, extensions call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the ETR, The interest income besed on EIR is included as interest income as
a part of other income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are recopnised in the statement of profit and loss. A gain or
toss on sweh financial asset which is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in satement of profit and lass when the: asset is devenopnised. This
category generally applies to Lrade and other receivables.

Finaneinl instruments at FVTOCT
A *financéal asset” is classified as at the FV'IOCL if both of the following criteria are met:
(i}  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flgws and selling the financial assets, and

(ii} The asset’s contractual cash Sows represent SPPL

Financial assets included within the FVT(CT category are measured as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognised in the other
comprehensive income (OCT). However, the Company recognizes interest income calenlated using the EIR method, impairment losses & reversals and
foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and luss. On derecognition of the asset, curnulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is
reclassified frome equity to prafit or loss

Financial instroments at FYTFL
FVTPL is5 a residual categosy for financial assets. Any financial assets, which does notmeet the cntena for ca:egonzamn as at amortised cost or as FYTOCI,

is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial assets, which otherwise meets amortised cost or FVTOCI criteriz, as at FVTPL. However, such
election is made only iF doing so reduces ar eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to a3 “accounting mismatch®).

Financia assets included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognised in the profit or foss in respec] of such assets
that are not part of a hedging relationship, The gain /loss on assets measured at FVTPL are presented i the statement of profit and loss within other
geains/losses in the pexiod in which jt arises, Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of J'.nd-AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading and contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Company
may make an irrevocable election to present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an
insirument-by-instrument basis, The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

- If the Company decides to classtty an equity mstrument as at #V10CI, then &1 tair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recopnised
in the OCJ. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to profit or loss, even on sale of invesiment. However, the Company may transfer the comulative
~ gain or loss within equity. -

- Equity instruments {ncluded within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with gain/loss presented in the slatement of profit and loss within other
gains/losses in the period in which it arises.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of = financiel asset or part of 2 group of similar I’mancla.l assets) is primarily derewgnlsed (i.e removed from
the Company’s balance sheet) whr:n

(i) The rights te receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
(1) The Company has tansferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation te pay the received cash flows in full without
material delay to a third party under a *pass-through’ asrangement; and either (&) the Company has transferred substantiafly =(i the risks and rewards

of the asset, ot () the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all thg risks and rewards of the asset but has transferred control of

" the asset.
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When the Company has not transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownesship of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.
Similarly, where the Company retains canirol of the financial asset, the asset is continued 10 be recognised to fhe extent of continuing involvement in the

financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizzs loss allowances on & forward-looking basis using the expected credit loss (ECL) madel for the financial assets which are not fair
valued through profit or loss. Lifetime ECE allowance is recognised- for trade receivables with no significant fnancing component, For alf other
financial assets, expected credit losses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month ECL, unless there has been a significant increase in credit risk from

initial recognition in which case they are measured af lifetime ECL. How the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in the credit

risk has heen detailed in the notes to the financial statements. The amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance
at the reporting date is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities

Initinl recognitior and measurcment

Financial liabilities are classified, et initial recognition, as financial labilities af fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instrumeants in an effective hedge, as appropriate. '

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Corapany’s financial Habilities include trade and other payables, [oans and bormowings including bank overdrafis and financial guarantes contracts and
dernivative financial instrumenis.

Sabsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss '
Financtal liabilities at Fair valve through profit or loss include financinl lisbilitios hold for troding and finnncial Finbilities designated upon initial
recognition asat fair value through profit or [oss. Financial liabitities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpese of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments, if any entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relfationships as defined by Ind-AS 109, Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instraments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of recognition, and only if
“the criteriz in Ind-AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/losses atiributable to changes in own credit risk are
recognised in OCL These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit or loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
toss within equity. Al other changes in fair value of such liability are cecognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Borrowings
After initin! recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds {net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recopnised in profit of loss over the period of the borrawing using the EIR method. Fees paid on the establishment of foan facilities
are recognised as transaction costs of the foan to the extent it is probable that some or all of the Facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred
until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable that some or ali of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
2 prepayment for liquidily services and amortised over the petiod of the facility to which it relates.

Preference shares which are mandaiondy redeemable sre classitied a¢ habiliies. ‘I'he dividends on thase preference shares, to the extent such dividends are
mandaterily payable, are recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

The fair value of the liability portion of an optionally convertible debenture/ bond/ praference share or a zero-coupon debendure/ bond/ preference share or
compulsorily convertible dcbenfure!preference shares where the prics of conversion of the debenture/preference shares into equity share is not fixed, is
determined using a market rate of intersst for an equivalent non-convertible bond. This amount is recorded as a lisbility on an amortised cost basis until
extingnished an conversion or sedemption of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable 1o the equity portion of the compound financial
instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders’ equity, net of income tax effects, and not subsequently remeasured,

When the terms ef a financial lisbility are renegotiated and the entity issues equity instrument to a creditor to extinguish all or part of a liability (debt for
© equity swap), & gain of loss is recognised in profit or loss, which is measured a5 the difference between the careying amount of the financial Yability and the

fair value of the equity instrument issued.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional fight to defer seftlement of the Jiability for at Jeast 12 months after
the reporiing period. Where there is a breach of a material provision of a long-term loan amangement on of before the end of the reporting period with the
effect that the liahility bacomes paynhic on demand o the sparting date, the entity does oot classify the liability as cument, if the lender agreed, after the
reporting peniod and before the approval of the financial statements for issue, not to demand payment as a consequence of the breach.

Financial gmarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts issned by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs

because the specified debtor fails 10 make a payiment when due in accordance with the terms ofa debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recopnised
initially as a liabitity at fair valus, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly atiributable to the issuance of the guarantee, with corresponding incrsase in

- investment in subsidiary. Subsequently, the Hability is measured at the higher of the amount of [oss allowance determined as per impainment requ1remems
of Ind AS 102 and the amotnt recognised Iess curnalative amortisation.
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Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. The difference between the carrying amount

of a finarcial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as ofher gaing/ losses. When an existing financiat liahility is replaced by another from the same iender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liabiliy and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and
loss as other gains/losses.

Derivatives

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair vafue on the date a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of each reporting period. The accounung for subsequent changes in fair value depends upon whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrament,
and if sa, the nature of the item being hedged, and the type of hedge relationship designated.

Derivatives which are not designated as hedges are accounted for at fair value through profit or Joss and are included in other grins/ losses.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded desivative i3 a component of & hybrid {combined} instrument that alse includes a non-derivative host contract — with the effect that some of .
the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in 2 way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows
that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according o 8 specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rafe, index of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable, provides in the case of a non-financial vardable that the variable is not
specific to a party to the contract

If the hybrid contract comains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind-AS 109, the Company does not separate embedded derivatives. Rather,
it applies the classification requiretnents contained in Ind-AS 102 tothe entire hybrid contract. Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the
host confracts are not held for trading or designated at fair vatue though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes
in feir value recagnised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instraments. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows thai would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset cut of the fair value

through profit or loss.

Reclassification of financial assets

The Company determines classification of financial assets and [iabilities on initial recognition. After initial recognition, ne reclassification is made for
financial assets which are equity instraments and financial liabilities. For financial assets which are debt instrurents, a reclassification is made only if thers
i5 & change in the business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are expected to be infrequent. The Company’s senior
management determines changes in the business model as a result of external or interal changes which are significant to the Company’s operations. Such
changes are evident to extemal parties. A change in the business model occurs when the Company either beging or ceases to perfarm an activity that is
significant te its operations, If the Company reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the reckassification date which is
the first day of the immedintely next reporting period following the change in business model. The Company does Tot restate any previously recognised
gains, losses {inclading impairment gains or losses) or interest.

Ofisetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and Gnaneial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the ba!ance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to otfsat

the recognised amounts and there is an intention o settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and sertle the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceabte
right must not be contéingent on future events and must be enforceable in the normal covrse of business and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy

of the Company of the coumerparty.

€}  Trade receivebles
Trade veceivables are recognised initially at fair value and suhsaquenﬂy measured ai amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for

impairment {allowance for expected credit inss).

hy  Current amd deferred tax
Income tax experise or credit for the period is ive tax payable on the cument period’s taxable income based on the applicable tax rate adjusted by changes in
deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable 10 temporary differences and to unused tax bosses / unmsed tax eredits.

Current iay
The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the reporting pcrlod_ Management

'perlodically evaluates positions taken in tax refums with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulatlon i3 subject o inderpretation. Tt establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of ameunts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

Deferred rax
" Deferred tax is provided vsing the Hability method on temporary dlﬂ‘erences between the tax bases of assets and Habilides and their careying amounts in the

{inancidl starements st the repotilng date.
-Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except

() When the deferred tax lability arises from the initfal recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
that, at the time of the transaction, affects nell‘.herthe accourting profit nor taxable profit or loss

- (i}  Invespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint ventures, when the timing of
- the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probeble that the tempomry differences will not reverse in the foresezable futare

Deferred 1ax assels are Tecognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carey forward of unussd tax credits and any unused tax Josses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available ag which the deductible temporary dlﬂ'erences, and the camy
_ forward of unused 1ax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:
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()  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a wansaction
that is not a business combination that, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(it}  In respect of deductible lel-npota.q.r differences associated with investments ip subsidiaries, associates and interests o joint ventures, defermed tax
assats are recognised ondy to the extent that it is probable that the wemporasy differences will reverse in (he foreseeable fuiure and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that il is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
prodit will be available 1o atlow all or part of the deferred tax asset 1o e utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and
are recognised (o the exient that it has become probable that fuure taxable profits will alfow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred 10x a3sets and liabilitics are measured at the tax rabes that are expected to apply 10 the year when the assst 15 rentised or ihe liahility is setDud, hased
on tax rates (and tax Iaws) thet have been enacted or substantively enacted at the seporting date. The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred incoma tax
assets and liahilities is recagnized as income or expense in the period that inctudes the enactment or the substantive enactment date.

Deferred tax assets and deforred tax liabilities are offset if a legafly enfarceable right exists tn set aff cvrrent thx asscts againgt cumrent tax linbilities,
The net amowsd of tax recoverable fum, or piayable 1o, the taxation awthority is inctuded as part of receivables or payables in the balance sheat,

Effective from April 1, 2019, the Company has adopted the option of lower effective corporate tax rate of 25.17% (including surcharge and cess), as per
Section 115BAA of Income Tax Act.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to itemns recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equily. Ln s case, Oie wx is wiso recognised in sther comprehansive icotte or ditectly in equity, respectively.

i) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of the cost or net realizable value. Net realizable value is the estimated selfing price in the ordinary ecurse of business,
less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Cost includes custom duty, freight and other charges as applicable. The
Company periodicaily reviews inventories to provide for diminution in the value of, andfor any unseeviceable or obsolete, inventories.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and condition are accounted for as follows:

Traded goods: cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred io bringing the inventories Lo their present location and condition. Cost is determined
on first in, first out basis,

J}  Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or
less, which are readily convertible to knows amounts of cash and cash equivalents and subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and shert-term deposits, as defined abcwe ret of cutstanding bank
averdrafis (mc]udmg cash credit facilities) as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

k)  Non-carrent assets held for sale/distribution to owoers and discontinued operations
The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale/distribution to owners if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally

through a salefdistribution rather than through continuing use and where a sale is considered highly probable. Actions required to complete the
sale/distribution should indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes 1o the sale/distribution will be made or that the decision-to sell/distribute will ke
withdrawn and Management must be committed to the sale/distribution being completed within one year from the date of classification.

Non-current assets held for sale/for distribution to ownees and dispesal groups are measured &t the lower of their camying amount and the fair value less
costs to sell/distribute except for assets such as deferred tax essets, assets arising from employee benefits, financial assets and contractual rights uader
insurance contracts, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale/distribution are presented separately
in the balance sheet.

An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write-down of the asset (or disposal group) to £air value less costs to seli/distribute. A gain is
recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to sell/ distribute an asset (or adisposal group), but not in excess oFany comulative impairment
ioss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously recogmsed by the date of sale/ distribution of the nor-current asset (or disposal group) is recognised
-on the date of deracognition.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale/distribution to owners are not depreciated or amertised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if 1t is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and:

(i}  Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, :
(il  Ispart of a single coordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of busiress or geographical area of operations, or
(iii} Isa subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view o resale

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of cominuing wperations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss after tax from
discontimeed operations in the statement of profit and loss.

All other notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing operations, unless otherwise mentioned,
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I Equity share capital
Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options zre shown in equity 45 a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

m) Trade and other payables
These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to the end of the financia! year which are unpaid. The amounts
are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and subsequem]y measured ot amortised cost nsing the effective
interest method.

n) Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions
A provision is recognised when the Company has a present legal or a constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is probabie that an ouiflow of
resources will be required to settle ihe obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are recognised for legal claims and service
warranties. Provisions are not recognised for future operating fosses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an cutflow will be required in seftlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a2 whole. A pravision is recognised even if the likelihood of an cutflow with respect to any one jtem included in the same class of obligations
may be small.

Provisions are measured at the prezent value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present abligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discouni vate used o determine the present value is the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the lishility. The increase in provision due to the passage of time is recognised a3 an interest expense.

These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. In respect of [osses that are covered by insurance, such losses
are recognised 4s an expense when thers is ¢lear evidence or determination or probability that any portion of the loss i isnot expected 1o be settled through
insuranca or other forms of recovery. .

Asset Retirement Obligations (ARQ)

ARQ are recognised for those operating lease arrangements where the Company has an obligation at the end of the lease period to restore the leased premises
in a condition similar to inception of lease, AR are provided at the present valne of expected costs to settle the obligation and are recognised as part of the
cost of that particular asset and amortised or depreciabed in the same manner as the asset to which it pertains. The estimated fiturs costs of decommissioning
are reviewed annually and any changes in the estimated fitture costs or in the discount rate applied are adjusted from the cost of the asses,

Contingent liabilities

Corttingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the
OccurTence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain foture events not wholly within the contrel of the Company or a present obligation that arises from
past events where it is either not prabable that an cutflow of tesoutces will be required go setfle, ora reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent Tiahikities recognised in a business combination

A comingent Linbility racognised in a business combination is initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at the hipher of the ampunt
that would be recognised in accordance with the requirements for provisions above or the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, curmulative
amoriisation recognised in accordance with the requirements for revenue recognition,

a) Government granis
Grants from the Government are recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received, and the Company will
comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to mcome or expendituref expenses are defemed and recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary fo match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Govemnment grangs relating to the puechase of property, plant and equipment are included in non-curcent liabilities as defierred income and recognised on a
straight-line basis over the expected lives of related assets and presented within sther income.

1y Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration recsived or eeeivable. Amonnis recognised as revenue are nef ¢f relumns, trads allowances, discounts,
rebates, deductions by customers, goods and services tax and amounts colfected on behalf of third panies.

At the inggption of the new contractual arzangement with the customer, the Company identifies the performance obligations inherent in the pgreement. The
terms of the contracts are such that the services to be rendered represent a series of services that are substantially the same with the same pattemn of the
transfer to the customer.

Revenne is recognised when the controf is transferred to the customer and when the Company has completed its performance obligations under the contracts.
Revem is eeenpnised in a manner that depicts the fmnsfer nf gnnds and services to enstamers at an amont that reflects the cansideratinn the Campany

expects 10 be entitled to in oxchongo for those goods or services.

Revenue is recognised as follows;
{i} Revenoe from services represents the amounts receivable for services rendered.
(i} For nen-contract-based business, revenue represents the value of goods delivered or services performed.
- {§ii) For contract-based business, revenue represents the sales value of wosk carried out for customers during the period. Such revenues are recognised in
the peniod in which the service is rendered.
{iv} Unbilled revenue net of expected deductions is recagnised at the end of each period. Sugh unbilled revenue is reversed in fhe subsequent penod when
actual invoice s raised.
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(v} Uneamed/deferred revenue (contract labilities) represents revenue billed but for which services have not yat been performed and is included under
Advantes from customers, The same is released to the statement of profit and loss account as and when the services are rendered.

(v} Revenue from the use of assets such as rent for using property, plant and equipment is recogriised on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related
leases unless payments are structured te increase in line with the expected general inflation 1o compensate for the Jessors® expected inflationary cost
increase.

Sale of goods :

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the control of goods has been transferred, being whet the products are delivered to the buyer, the buyer
- having the full discretion over the use of the goods and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affeet the buyer's acceptance of the product. Delivery
occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the buyer, and either the
buyer has accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Company hes objective evidence that
all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied. Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recaivable, net
of returns and allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Discounts and rebates are estimated based on accumulated experience. The Company provide
normal warranty provisions for general repairs for one year on all its products sold, in line with the industry practice. A Hability is recognised at the time the
product is sold. Revenue is deferred and recognised on a siraight line basis over the extended warranty period in case warranty is provided to customer for
a period beyond oty year.

Rendering of services o '

In contracts invelving the readering of services, revenue is measured vsing the proportionate completion method when no significant uncerlainty exists
. Tegarding the amount of the consideration that will be derived from rendering the service. When the contract owcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue

is recognised only to the extent that the expenses incurred are eligible to be recovered.

Estimates of revenue, costs or extent of progress towards eompletion are revised if circumstances change. Any resulting increases ar decreases in estimated
revenue or costs are reflected in profit or loss in the period in which the circumstances that give rise to the revision become knowr 1o the management,

Multiple-element arrangements
When a sales arrangement contains multiple clements, such as services, material and maintenance, revenue for each element is determined based on each

element's fair valtue,

Revenue recognition for delivered elements is limited fo the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services, future
performance obligations or subject to customer-specified return or refund privileges.

The undiscounted cash fisws from the arangement are periodically estimated and compared with the unamortised costs. If the unamortised costs exceed
the undiscourmted cash flow, a loss is recopnised.

Jnterest income )
For all financial assetss measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest ingome is recorded using the effective

interest rate (EIR). EIR is the mte that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instroment or
a shorter period, where appropriate, o the gross carrying amount of the financial asset of to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When caloulating the
effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrament (for example,
prepayment, extension, call and similar options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement
of profit and loss.

Dividends
Dividend income from investments is recognised in profit or loss as other income when the Company*s right to receive payments is establisheg, it is prebable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will low to the Company, and the amount of the dividend can be measured relizhly.

Hental income

Rental income arising fom operating leases on investment properties is acceunted for on a straight-ling basis over the lease term unless payments are
structuted to increase in ling with the expected general inflation fo compensate for the lessors’ expested inflationary cost increase and is included in revenue
in the statement of profit or less due to its operatitig nature.

) Forgign carrency translation
The financial staterents of the Company ars presented in Indian Rupees (INR) wliicle is alse the Company’s funciiona] cureency i2. the enrrency of the

primary economic eavironment in which the Company operates. '

“Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by ihe Company at their respective functional currency spotrates prevailing at the date the ransaction
first quadifies fin recoguilion.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transtated at the fimetional curtency spot rafes prevailing as at the reporting date,
- Subsequently, differences arising on restatement or settlement wl munely il we reeoguised in profl ot s, Non-monerary ftems that are measured in
_terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions and transtation differences are
recognised in OCY with the accumudation in other equity as foreign curreacy translation reserve. Non-monetary jtems measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are transtated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items
measured at fair value is treated in line with the recogmition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.¢., translation differences on items
whose fair vatue gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are alse recognised in OCI or the statement of profit and loss, respectively).
The equity items denominated in foreign cumencies are translated at historical cost, )

¥y  Employec benefits : ) .
. The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, compensated absences, defined contribution to plans, defined benefit plans and
share-based payments. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the assoctated services are rendered by the employees of the Company,

Short-term gbligations
- Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-menetary benefits, and compensated absences expected to be settlad within twelve months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service are tecopnised in respect of employees' sarvices up fo reporting date and are measured zt the
. amounts expected 10 be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liability for compensated absences is recognised in the provision for employee benefits. All
. ofher shert-term employee benefit obligarions are presented as employee benefits payable under other fipancial liabilities, current, : ‘
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Bonus
The Company tecoghizes a liability and an expense for bonuses. The Company recognizes a provision where contractually or legally obliged or where there

is a past practice that has created a constructive obligation.

Compensated absences/Leave liabilitics
The employees of the Company are entitled 1o compensated absences which are hoth accumulating and non-accumulating in nature. The employees

can carry forward up to a specified portion of the unuiilised accumulated compensated absences and utilize it in future periods. The expected cost of
accumulating compensated absences is determined by actuarial valuation {using the projected unit credit method) based on the additional amount expectad
ta be paid as 2 result of the unused entitlement that has accumutated et the balance sheet date. The expense on non-accumulating compensated
absences is recogpised in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which the absences occur Re-measurement arising out of actuarial gains / loses
are immediately taken into the statement of profit and loss and are not deferred.

In respect of those employess who are entitled to encashment of the Jeave at the end of every calendar year a provision is created to account for the liability,

The obligations are presented as current kiabilities in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve
months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

Post-employment obfipations

The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:
(i} Defined ceniribution plans such as provident fund and employees’ state insurance; and
(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity.

" Defined contribution plan
The Company comiributes on a defined contribution basis for eligible employees, to Bmployees' Provident Fund, Employees” Pension Scheme and
Employees” State Insurance Scheme towards post-employment benefits, all of which are administered by the respective Government authoribies and has no
further obligation beyond making its contribution which is expected in the year in which it pertains. The contribinions are acconnted for as defined
contribution plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid coniributions sre recopnised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refind or a reduction in the firure payments is available,

Defined benefit plan
The Company has a defined benefit plan, viz, Gratuity, for all its employees, the liabifity for which is accrued and provided for as determined by an

independent actuarial valuation, The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of gratity plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit is actuasially determined (using the prejected unit credit method) at the end of cach year.

Present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by referance to market yields on government
bond at the end of the reporting periods on government bonds that have spproximately similar terms of the velated obligation.

The Company recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

() Service costs comprising current service costs, past-gervice costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine seftlements; and
(it)  Net interest expense or income

Past service costs are recoghised in profit or loss on the earlier of

(i)  The date of the plac amendmeni or curtailment, and

(ii)  The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs.

The net interest is calculated by applying the above menticned discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit oblizations. This cost is included in the
employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurcments, comprising of actuarial pains and losses, excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability are recosnised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through other comprehensive income in the period in which they
occur. Remeasurements are not reclagsified 1o statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Equity settled stock-hased eompensatinn
- Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby employees render services as

consideration for equity instruments {squity-settled transaciions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fir value at the date when the grant is made osing an apprapriate valuation moded, The fair value
‘of options granted under various Employee Share aption plans is recognised asan employee bensfits expense with a corresponding increase in equity (share
option outstanding account).

The total expense is recognised over the vesting peciod, which is the period over which all of the specificd vesting conditions are to be satisfied, At the end
of eack period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of apiions that are expected to vest based on the non-market vesting and service conditions, It
recognizes the impact of the revision to otiginal estimates in the period of change, if any, in the profit or loss, with comesponding, adinstment tn aquity

Service and non-market performance conditiens are not taken imo aceount when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but ihe liketihood of the

~conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company's hest estimate: of the nuimber of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions, if any, are reflected within the prant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

Mo expense isTecognised for awards that do not ultimately vest becanse non-market performance and/or service condiifans have not been met. Where awards
include a market or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vested imespective of whether the market or non-vesting candition is satisfied,
provided thal all other performance and/or service eonditions are satisfied,

The dilutive effect of cutstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of difated earnings per share.
' 18 ) '
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Cazsh settled stock-bzsed compensation
Empioyees of the Company receive share-based compensation in the form of parent company™s share options. The cost of cash-seitled transactions is
measired initially ai fair valoe a2 the grant date based on a debit note received from the parent company. This fair value is expensed over the period until

the: vesting date with recognition of a coresponding liability.

8)  Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs inchude interest caleulated on the effective interest rate method and exchange differences arising from forei gn currency borrowings to the
extent that they are repanled as an adjustiment ta the interest cost. General and specific bomowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, constroction
or production of the assets that necessanily take a substantial period of titee to get ready for their intended use or sale {" qualifying assets’), are added to the
cost of those assets, unfl such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the statement
of profit and less within finance costs in the period in which they are incurred.

t)  Exceptional items
Exceptional items refer fo items of income or expense within the statement of profit and loss from ordinary activities which are non-recurring and are of
such size, nature or incidence that their separate disclosure is considered necessary to explain the perfermance of the Company.

u)  Leases
Company as a lessee
- The Company’s fease asset classes primarily consist of leases for. buildings, equipment and vehicles. For any new contracts entered inio or changed on or
- after April 1, 2019, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as “a oomiract, or part of a contract, that conveys the
right to vse an asset (the underlying asset} for a period in exchange for consideration®, To apply this definition the Company assesses whether the contract
meets three key evaluations which are whether:
(1) the contract contains an identified asset, which is either expl:mt]y identified in the contract or implicitly specified by being identified at the time the asset

is made available to the Company
{it) The Contpany has the right to obain substantialty all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset throughout the peried of use, considering

its rights within the defined scope of the contract
(iti) The Company has the right to direct the use of the identified asset throughout the period of use.

The Company assesses whether it has the right (0 direct *how and fer what purpose’ the asset is vsad throughout ¢he period of use.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset ("ROU’) and a comresponding lease Tiability on the balence sheet. The right-of-
use asset i3 measured at cost, which comprises of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial direct costs incutrred by the Company, an estimate
of any costs fo dismantle and remove the asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement date (net of any
incentives received).

The Company depreciates the right-of use assets nsing the written down valoe method from the lease commencement date tg the earlier of the end of the
usefil life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

IndAS116 requires lessees to determine the leass tevm as the non-cancellable period of 2 Jease adjusted with an option to extend or terminate the lease, if
the use of such option is reasonably certain. The lease term in firture periods is reassessed {0 ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic

circumstarces.

Extension and termination options are inclucied in a nurnber of leases of the Company. These are used to maximise operational flexibility in ferms of
managing the assets used in the Company’s operations. The majerity of extensior and termination options held are exercisable only by the Company and
not by the respective lessor,

At the comunencemnent date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that date, disconnted using the
imterest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily available or the Company's incremental borrowing rate. Eease payments included in the measurement
of the lease lability are comprises of fixed payments (including in substance fixed), variable payments based on an index or rate, amounis expected to be
payable undeér a residual value guarantee and paymenis arising from options reasenably certain to be exercised.

Subsequent to imitial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made and mereased for interest. It is remeasvred to reflect any reassessment
or medification, er if there are changes in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is remeasured, the commesponding adjustment is reftected in'
the right-of-use asset, or profit and loss if the ripht-of-use asset is already reduced to zero. )

The Company has electad to account for short-term leases and leases of low;va!ue assets using the practical expedients. Instead of recoprising a nght—of-.
“ use asset and lease lakility, the payments in relation to these are mwgmsed as an expense in the statzment of profit and loss on a slra:ght ~line basis over the
" lease term.

‘Lease tiabitity and right-of-use assets have been separately presenled in the notes 1o the financial statements under ‘Other financial liability” and 'Property,
plant and equipment” (except those meeting the definition of investment property) respectively. Lease payments have been classified as *financing cash
flows®, .

Company &s e lessar

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental
inceme from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease unless payments are structured to increase in line with
the expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increase under “Other Income™ in the statement of Profit and Loss. Initial

_direct costs incwmed in negotiating and amranging an operating lease are added w the carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term
on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are eamed. The respective leased assets are
included in the balance cheet based on their nature.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownesship transter from the Company to the lessee. Amounis due

fram lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Company’s net investment in the feases. Finance lease income is allocated To accoumting
periads so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of teturn on the net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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v) lmpairment of non-financial assets ]
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation and are fested annually for impairment, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other non-financial assets, othet than inventories and deferred tax assets are
tested for impaicment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the assel’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less cost of disposal and its value-in-use. Value-in-use is the present value of Future cash tlows expectad
to be derived from the asset. For the purposes of impairment testing, asseds are grouped at the [owest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or group of assets (cash-generating units or CGU). Impainuent ocours when the
carrying amount of a CGU including the geodwili, exceeds the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU., Fer the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill

" acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Company’s CGUs expected to benefit from the synergies arising from the business combination. Total

impairment loss of a CGU is allocated first to reduce the carrying amoumt of goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of the CGU, pro-
rata on'the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU. An impairment loss or goodwill recognised in the statement of profit and loss is not
reversed in the subsequent period. Non-financial assets other than geedwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of impairment at
the end of each reporting period.

w) Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit for the period attributable to equity shareholders of the Company (after deducting pre Ferem:e
dividends and atiributahle taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of #n equity share fo the extent that they were entitled to participate in dividends refative to a fufly paid
equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of quity shares cutstanding during the petiod is adjusted for events of bonus issue;
bomus element in a rights issue to existing sharsholders; share split; and reverse share split (consolidation of shares),

Diluted Eamings per share amounts are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the Company (after dedusting preference

dividends and attritutable taxes but after adjusting the after income tax effect of interest and other financing cost associated with dilutive potential equity
shares) by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and also the weighted average number of equity
shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares, The diluted potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds
receivable had the shares been actually issued at fair value (i.e. the average market value of the outsianding shares). Dilutive potential equity shares are
deemed converted as at the beginning of the year, unless issued at a later date. Dikutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each year
presented.

x)  Cash dividend and non-cash distribiztion to equity holders of the Company
The Company recognizes a Hability 10 make cash or non-cash distributions to equity hofders of the Company when the distrbution is authorised and the
distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. A corresponding amount is recognised direcly in equity.

Non-cash distributions are measured al the carrying value ol (he assets to be distributed in case of disitibutions i which all awners of the same class of
equity instnunents are reated equally or the distributed asset is uttimately controlied by the same party or parties both before and after the distribution, and
at fair valve of the assets to be distributed in other cases, with such value recognised ditectly in equity. For this purpose, a group of individuals shall be
regarded as controlling an entity when, as a result of contractual armangements, they collectively have the power to govem its financial and operating policies
50 as to obtain benefits from its activities, and that ultimate collective power is not transitory. Upon distribution of non-cash assets, any difference between
the carrying amourt of the lisbility and the carrying amount of the assets distributed is recognised in the statement of profit and loss or directly in the squity
as approved by the National Company Law Tribunal / applicable regulatory or other authority.

¥)  Cash flow stalement
Cash flows are reporied using the indirect method, whereby profit for the period is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non- cash nature, any deferrals
or accvuals of past or future operating cash receipts or paymeats and item of income or expenses associated with investing of financing cash flows, The cash
flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.4. Recent pronouncements;
The Minisuy of Corporate Affairs (MCA) nofifies new smdards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standardy Amendmemnt Rules, 2022 on March 23, 2022. The key amendments are given below:

IndA$16 — Property, Plant and equipment - The amendment clarifies that excess of nét sale proceeds of items produced over the cost of testing, if
any, shall not be recognized in the profit or loss but deducted from the directly attributable costs considered as part of cost of an item of property, plant
and equipment. The effactive date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or afier April 1, 2022, The Company has evalualed
the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements

IndAS 37 - Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets — The amendment specifies that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises
the ‘costs that relate divectly to the contract”. Costs that relate directly to a contract an either be incremental ©osts of fulfilling that contract (examples
would be direct labour, materials) or an allacation of other cosis that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (an example would be the allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of properly, plant and equipment used in fulfiliing the contract). The effective date for adoplien of 1his amendment is
annuat periods beginning on or after April 1, 2022, althesgh eandy adoption is permitted. The Company has evaluated the amendment and the fmpact
is itot expected to be material,
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2.5. Significant accounting judgements estimates and assumptions

Use of estimates and judgment :
The preparation of the financial statements in confanmity with Ind-AS requires managemen to make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the

" application of accounting policies and the reporied amounts of assets, liabifities, incomé and expenses and other comprehensive income (QCI) that are
teported and disclosed in the financial statements and accompanying fotes.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. They are based on historicat experience and other factors including expectations
- of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that are believed 1o be reasonable undes the circumstances. Revisions 1o aceounting
estimates aze recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected,

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company”s accounting policies, managément has made various judgements, which have the most significant effect on the

amqounts recognised in the financial statements.

This note provides an overview of the areas that invalved a higher degree of judgement or complexity, and of items which are more likely 1o be materiatly
adjusted due to estimates and assamptions tuming out to be different than those originally assessed.

Detailed information about each of these estimates and judgements is inclnded in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calcuation for
each affecied [ine item in the financial statements.

Critical estimates and judgements

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
(i) Estimation of current tax expense and payable — Note 7
(i) Estimated useful life of intangible assets — Note 2.2 ()
(ili) Estimation of defined benefit obligation — Note 27
{(iv} Recognition of deferred tax assets for carried forward of tax losses — Note 7
{v) Impairment of trade receivables —Note 10
(vi} Whether assets held for distribution to owners meet the definition of discontinued operations - Nete 2.3 (k}

Impairment

The Company assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Company that may lead to impairment of assets, Where
© an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Valve-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts
incorporate a rumber of key estimates. There ate no reasonable foreseeable changes in these key estimates which would have caused &n impairment of these

assels,

Share-based payments

Estimating fair vafue for share-based payment wansactions requirés determination of the most appropriate valuation modsl, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires determination of the most appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the share option, volatility and dividend yield and making assurnptions about them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair valug for share-
based payment transactions are disclosed in notes to the financial statement.

Taxes
Deforred tax assets are recoghised for unused tax fosses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing

and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning strategies.

Dedined benefit plans (gratnity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the present value of the gratuity ohbligation are determined nsing

selvarial valuations, An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from zctual developments in the future. These include the
- determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and fts long-term nature, &

defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. Al assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tabtes. Those mortality {zbles tend fo change only at interval in response to demographic changis.
Future salary increases, and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

- Fair value measurement of financial instruments
When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measored based on quoted prices in active markets,

their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the Discounted Cash Flows model. The inpuis to these models are taken from observable
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of
inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affeet the reported fair value of financial instruments.

Intangible assct under development
- The Company capitalizes development costs for a preject in accordance with the accounting policy, Initial capitalization of costs is based on management’s

-judgesment that technological and economic feasibility is confirmed. In determining the amounts fo be capitalised, management makes assumptions fegarding
the expected ﬁcturc cash penesation of the project, discouns rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
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Leases
Ind AS 116 requires kessees 10 determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of & lease adjusted with any oplion to extend or terminate the lease, if

the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and there by assesses
whether it is reasonably certain that any options to extend ar terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers
factors such as any significant leasehold improvements undertmken over the lease term, costs relafing to the termination of the lease and the availability of
suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances.

Uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19

The Cotnpany has considered the possible effects that may result from the pandemic relating to COVID-19 on the carrying amounts of receivables, unbillad
revenoes and investment in subsidiaries. The Company has assessed the carrying amounts based on subsequent events and the state of the business operations
during the period of the pandemic and related information including economic forecasts, As 4 vesult of this assessment, and based on current estimates, the
Company expects that the careying amount of these assets will be recovered. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company's financial statements may differ
from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

{This space has been intentionally left blank}
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ARl amounts are in INR million, unf:zss :.mred amer'wfse

S, Investment

Dusters Total SolutlonsServmes Prlvate lelted

Particnlars March 31, 2022 [ March 31, 2021
Non-current investments
Investments in equity instrmments

Investment in snbsidiavies (at cost unless stated otherwise)

: Unguoted cquity shares (fully paid)

; 10,000 (March 31, 2021: 10,000) equity shares in Adis Enterprises Frivate Limited of INR 10/~ 19.26 16,45
each

_ Total Investment in subsidiaries (A) 19.26 19,25

: Investment in other equity instruments (2t FYTPL)

! Unguoted eguity shares (fully paid)
2,500 equity shares (March 31, 2021: 2,500) of INR 10/ each in Sarsswat Co-gperative 0.03 0.03
Bank Limited
Total investment in others (B) 0.03 0.03
Total investment in equity Instruments (A+B) 19.29 19.28
Total non-current invesiments 15.29 19.28
Current investments - -
Total investments 18,29 19.28
Aggregaie book value of quoted investments and market value thereof - -
Aggrepate boak value of unquoted investments 16,29 19.28
Aggregate amownt of impairment in value of investments - -

6, Other fimancial assets

Particulars

March 31, 2022

Mavrch 31, 2621

Other pou-current financial assets

2498

. Security deposits (unsceured, comsidered pood) 22.99

" {Margin money in the form of fixed deposits * 0.04 -
Total other non-current Anancial assets 25.02 22.99

O Hier curzend financiz] ssseds

i Unbilled revenus ** 560.90 350.25
. Security deposits (unsecured, considered good) i1.36 2.95
Interact accrued on deposits 2.73 347
{Cther receivables 3.42 2.53
Total other current financlal assets 578.41 365.21
603,43 388.20

Tatal financial assets

*Fixed deposits have been pledged as margin money ogainst bank guarantees.
- ** All unbilled revenues are undisputed and falling under the ageing of less than six months from the date of completion of delivery of goods/services.
Further, unbilled revenues are ciassified as financial assets as right to consideration is unconditional and is due only after passage of time.

No Toans or other advances are due from directors or other officers of the Company either severaily or jointly with any other person and from Rems or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partmer, a director or a member.

7. Income tax
The major components of insoine tax expense for the year ended March 31, 202 and March 31, 2021 are;

Statement ef profit and loss:
Profit or loss scetion:

Particulars © March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Curvent incoma (ax;

Current income tax charge

Adjustments in respect of current income tax expense / {reversal} of preﬁiom yeats - 0.39

Deferred tax:

Drscrease / {increase) in defesred tax assets (net) _ (85.92) 104.71 .
" |Izcome tax expense / (credit) reperied in the statement of prefit and loss . (85.92) 105.10
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

Al amounty are in INR million, unless siated otherwise

OCI section: -
Tax related to items recognised in OCT during in the year:

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Tax expense / (credit) on re-measurement of defined benefit plans (10.70) {3.0%)
Income tax charged to QCE {10.70) (3.0%9
Reconcifiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by the tax rate

Pariiculars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 308.17 177.03
Accounting profit before income tax 308.17 177.03
Statmtory income tax rate 2517% 25.17%
Income tax expense at staqmory rate 77.36 44 56
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous years - 039
Additional temporary tax deductible in respect of certain benefits under the Incorne Tax Act, 1961 (162.06) 54,95
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes

Corporate social responsibility sxpenditere 0.05 243
Donation - 0.01
Other non-deductible expenses/(incoms) (1.47} 2,76
Tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (85.92) 105.10

The balance in deferred tax asseis (Mabilities) comprises temporary dilferences atiribotable to:

The effective tax rate applicable would be 25_17% [including surcharge and cess) based on the law as it exists on the date of these financial statements.

Income tex assets

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Propetty, plant and equipment / Intangible assets (5.83) (7.91)
Defined benefit obligations ' 97.05 86.67
.[Deductions in respect of certain benefits under the Income Tax Act, 1961 160.5% 76.06
Accruals and others 12.78 11.36
Allowance for expected credit loss — trade receivables 19.91 21.70
Tatal deferred tax assets / (Liabilities) 284.50 187.58
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liabilities), net:
Property, | Defined | Deductions| Accrmals | Allowance Total
| plant and benefit in respect |and others for
equipment jobligations | of certain expected
Particalars / benefiis credit loss
Intangible under the — trade
assels Income Nax receivables
Aet, 1961
As at April 1, 2020 {1537} 81.69 196.55 14.15 848 289,50
Tax income / (expense} during the period recogaised in 346 1.89 (120.49) 2.79) 1322 | -oa71)
profit or loss -
Ta‘x income / {expense) during the period recognised in } 3.00 . . . 3.09
OCL .
‘| As at Marchk 31, 2021 (7.91) 86.67 76,06 11.36 2170 |  IB7.88
]Teax income / {expense) during the period recognised in 208 ©32)} 84.53 142 (1.79) 85.92 -
orofit or loss
Tax income / {expense} during the period recopnised in ) 10.70 . ) _ 10.70
OCI .
As at March 31, 2022 {5.83) 9703 1560.59 12.78 1991 284.50
Income t#X assets
-[Particulars Marck 31, 2022 { March 31, 2021
Opening balznce 290.42 226,48
Taxes paid 158.67 104.55
Refund received - {40.22)
Current tax payable for the year - (0.39)
449.09 290.42
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited
f amcms are MR mitlion, am.fes s.fe T H——_. T
g The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has = legally enforceable right 1o set off current tax assets and current tax
liabitities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tas authority.
8.  Other assets
Particulars ’ ' March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Other non-carrcat assets - -
Other current assets
Prepaid expenses 23.45 17.02
Other advances 11.90 5.96
Other current assets 413 4.13
Total ather current asseis ) 39.48 27.11
Total other assets : 39.48 2711
9, Inventories
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 202}
Uniforms ' 393 -
Total inventories st the lower of cost and net realisable value 3.93 -
10. Trade recelvables
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Trade recefvables . 1,605.06 1,304.29
Less Allgwance for expested credit loss 79.10 86.21
Total trade receivables 1,525.96 ) 1,218.08
Break np of security details . )
| Particulars ' ‘Mareh 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Secured, considered good ’ - -
Unsecured, considered good 1,605.06 1,304 .29
Totsl 1,605.06 1,504.29
The egeing schedule for outstanding {rade receivables fram the dee date is given below: -
Yeur ended March 31, 2022
- Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date Tatal
' Not duc | Less than {6 months - | 1-2 years | 2-3 yenrs | More than
6 months 1 year 3 years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables  considered good | 1,097.45 434 26 12,18 8.97 2.29 4.90 | 1,560,05
{i1) Disputed trade receivables considered pood - - 0.19 2320 13.66 7.95 45.01
Year ended March 31, 2021
Particolarg . Quistanding for following perieds from due date Total
Not due | Less than (6 months - | 1-2 years | 2-3 years | Mure (han
: Smonths | 1year |- 3 years
(i) Undisputed trade receivables — considered good T63.75 [ = 45420 31.43 15.44 10,59 - 1,275.43
(1} Mhisputed trade receivables considered pood - - 21.29 4.31 3.26 - 28.86
- The movement in allowances for expected credit loss is as follows: o
Particulars o ' March 31,2022 | March 35,2021
Opening bakance 86.21 33.70
| Additions : 0.04 64.91
Write off (net of recovery) . (7.15) {£2.40)
|Closing balance 79.10 8621

No trade receivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company efther severally or joimly with any other person and from firms or private
companies respectively in which any director is a partner,  director or a member except as diselosed in notz 36,

Refer note 37 for the company”s policy regarding impairment allowance on trade receivables and Company’s credit risk management processes,
For ontstanding balances, terms and conditions relating to related party receivables refer note 36. -
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

AH amouns are in INR mdfmn, unless Je‘ated olherwise

11. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars . March 31,2022 | March 3F, 2021

Balances with banks:

— On current accounts . 1.01 9.46
: — Bank deposits with original matwrity of three months ot less ' 56580 | 537.24
. Total 566.81 546.72

Bank balances lying in various current accounts bear no interest,
There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of reporting perlod and ptior periods.

12. Equity share capital

Authorized share capital
Particukars C {Nos. in million) {INR. million)
As at April 1, 2020 (Fquity shares of INR 10 each) 5.70 . 57.00
Increase / {decrease} during the year : - -
As at March 31, 2021 (Egui¢y shares of INR 10 each) 5.70 57.00
Intcrease / {decrease) during the year . ’ - -
As at March 31, 2022 (Equity sharcs of INR 10 each) 5.70 57.00

Issued / Subscribed and paid ap equity capita

Particnlars (Nos. in million) (INR million)
As at April 1, 2020 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) ' 2,80 28.02
Increase / (decrease) during the year : - -
As at March 31, 2021 (Equity shares of INR 10 each) 2.80 23.02
Increage / {decrease} during the year C - -
As at March 31, 2022 (Fquity shares of INR 10 each) : .80 2802
Shares held by holding Company
Oue of the equity shares issued by the Company, shares held by its holding company are as below:
March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Particalars :
No. of shares No. of shares
&8 Limited (formerly known as 'Security and Intelligence Services (India) Limited") 2,801,665 2,801,665
Details of sharcholders halding more than 5% shares in the Company
As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
Nazme of the sharcholder % holding in the % holding in the
No. of shares No. of shares
class class
SIS ?.Amrted _(furr_m:‘rly known as 'Securities and Intelligence 2,801,665 100.00% 2,801,665 100.00%
Services (India) leﬂed’)

Ne equity shares wara issued as bonus, for consideration other than cash or bought back during the period of five years immediately ]Jrccedlng the
reparting date.

Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value of INR. 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share
- and fo participate in dividends in proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the sharss held The Company declares and pays divigends in

Indian rupees,

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the halders of equity shares will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of thc Company, after
- distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion 1o the amount of equity shares held by the shareholders.
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Dusters Total SoltnonsServxces Prlvate Limited

AJ! amouty are in JNR million, wnless staled otherwive
13. Other equity

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Reserves and surplns

Balance at the end of year

Securities premivm 621.24 621.24
- | General reserve 17.35 i7.33
Retained eamings 1,442.90 1,080.64
Total reserves and surplus (A) 2,081.4% 1,719.23
Other reserves
Capital redemption reserve 0.18 0.18
Capital reserve 17.09 17.09
Total other reserves (B) ¥7.27 17.27
Total ather equity (A+EB) 2,098.76 1,736.50
Securities premium
Pasticulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance at the I:;egilming of year 621.24 621.24
Receipt on issue of equity shaf&s - -
621.24 621.24

General reserve

Balance at the end of year

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Ealance at the beginning of year 17.35 17.35

Transfer to / (from) general reserve - -

Balanee at the end of year 17.35 17.35
Rctained earnings

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021

Balance at the beginning of year 1,080.64 1,017.88

Net Prafit / {loss) for the year 394 .09 71.93

Items of other comprehensive income recognised directly in retained eamings

- Remeaswrements of post-employment benefit plans directly in retained eamings (31.83) - (9.17

Balance at the end of year 1,442.90 1,080.64
Capital reserve

Particulars Marck 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Balaace at the beginning of year 17.09 17.09

Increase! (decrease) during the year - -

17.09 17.09

Capital redemption reserve

Balanee at the end of year

|Particulars _ _ March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Balance at the beginnoing of year 018 0.18
Increase/ {decrease) during the year - -

0.18 0.18

Nature and parpose of reserves
@) Securities premlum

Security preminm is usedto record the prermurn on issue of shares or other securities such as debeatures or bonds. The reserve is utilised in accordance with

the Companies Act, 2013,

(i) General reserve

The general reserve is the tesult ofa company s transferring a certain amount of Employee Stock Option Reserve onlapse of the options granted on account of
exit of the employees. The pupose of setting up a general reserve account is ta meet potential fature unknown liabilities, In other words, the genernl reserve

is a fiee reserve which can be wiilised for any purpose after fulfilling certain coaditions.

. (i) Retalned carnings

.Retamed eamings represents the amount of aceumulated eamings of the Company and re-measurement differences on defined benefit plans,
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“D-_l-lterTOtal Solutions Services Private Limited

Al amounts dre in INR mitlion, wnless stated ofkcrw:‘
{iv) Capital reserve
The capital reserve represents the net assets over the shares allotted by the Company consequent 10 Amalgamation of Amalgamation of Total Facility
Managememt Private Limited and Dusters Hospitality Services Private Limited in the financial year ended March 31, 2009,

{v}  Capital redemption reserve

During, the year ended March 31, 2016, the Company, has made the buyback of equity shares at a price of IMR 503 per equity share under section 68 of the
- Companies Act 2013 on December 23, 2015, The buyback was made ap 10 1.78% of the paid-up equity share capital and fres ressrves of the Company as at

March 31, 2013, The aggregate amount for buy back was INR 9.24 millior and the Company utilised the surplus balancs in securities premium of INR., 9.05

millien and the share capital of INR 0.18 million. The Capital Redemption Reserve accouni was credited cut of surplus in statement of profit and loss for INR

6.12 million being face value of shares bought back.

14, Borrowings

Particulars

Note March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Non-current borrowings

Secnred

Term loans

From banks

- Wehicle loan from various banks

0.81

Total secured berrowings

1.81

Unsecured borrrowings

Total nor-current borrowings

0.81

Current maturity of long term loans

(0.81)] -

Non-current bormﬁrings (as per balance sheet)

Current borrowings

Secured

Loans repayable an demand

From banks

" |= MNational Australia Bank

- HDFC Bank Limited

18283

- Yes bank limited

0.00

- REL bank limited

[ 72.11

Total secured borrowings

254.94

Unsecared berrrowings

Add: Current maturities of long term debt

0.81

Cuerrent borrewings (as per balanee sheet)

254.94

0.81

Ageregate secured borrpwings

254 .94

0.81

Agoregate unsecured borrowings

Notes:

2)  This represents the amount received fiom Yes bank during the year ended March 31, 2019 as vehicle loans. Loans are secured by hypothecation of
the vehicles for which loans are obtained. There are no defanlts in the repayment of the principal loan and interest ameunts. The loans carry interest
rate of 10.84% p.a. and loan {s scheduled to be repaid in 37 equal monthly instalments. The same have been fully repaid during the year ended March

31,3022,

b) Loen repaysble oo demand represent the amount outstanding againet the cash credit facilities from HIDFC bank limited, Yes bank limited and RBL
bank Limited. The loan carry interest of 5.50% lo 8.75% per annum on outstanding amount of Cash Credit. The loans are sscured by First pari passu
charge on current assets of the Company. The interest rate is variable and linked with MCLR.

15. Lease Jiabilitics

Particulars March 31, 2022| Mareh 31, 2021
Non-curent lease liabilities 28.78 30.38
Current lease linhilities 21.54 1423
Total lease liabilities 50.32 44.61
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Movement of lease labilities during the year

Particalars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Opening halance 44,61 35.72
Additians 28.75 5.06
Deletions (5.47) .01
Finance cost acerued during the year 5.19 . 5.8t
Payment of lease liability (22.76) (21.99)
Closing balance 50,32 44.6%

16. Trade payables

Particolars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Non-enrrent

Current

Trade payailes

- total putstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (MSME) 7.39 3.56
~  total amtstanding dues of creditors other than micto enterprises and small enterprises 9735 76,13
Total current trade payables 184.74 79.69
Total 104.74 79,69

The terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities are as follows:

1)  Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on credit terms ranging from 30-60 days which vary by vendor and type of service.

it} For outstanding balances, terms and conditions with related parties refer note 36.

Based on the information available with the Company, the amount payable to creditors who have been identified as “suppliers” within the meaning of

“Micro, Small and Mediwm Enterprises Development (MSMED) Act, 2006 is as below:

Particulars : . March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
| Principal amount and the interest [INR Nil (March 31, 2021 -Nil)] due thereon 7.39 3.56
Amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED Act, 2005, along with
the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day dwring each accounting - -
year
Amount of interest due and payable for the periad of delay in making payment {which have been
paid but beyond the appeinted day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under - -
MSMED Act, 2006 . '
Amount of inferest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year - -
Amount of further interest remaining doe and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date
when the interest dues as above are actuafly paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of| - -
disallowance as a dedyotible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act, 2006
The ageing schedule for outstanding trade payables where due date is given below:
~Year ended March 31, 2022
Partienlars Outstanding for following periods fromn due date Total
Mot due <l year | L2years | 2-3 years | More than
i 3 years
- |hMsMEB 693 046 - - - 7.39
(ii}Others 4585 | 43.62 092 - 696 - 97.35
(jii) Disputed dues — MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
© Year ended March 31, 2021 )
' ' Particalars Outstandiny fur feltowing periods from due dale Total
Not due <1 year | 1-Zyears | 2-3years [ More than
3 vears
{iMMFE 30 0.7 - . 3,56
|Gy hars 37.24 34.93 3.96 " " 7613
(i) Pisputed dues - MSME - - - - - -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - - - - - -
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17, Other finaneisl Labilities

Al mmounts are in INR million, wlers stated orherwise

Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

Particulars

March

31,2022

March 31, 2021

Non-current

Current
Capitaf ereditors 6.78 15.45
Employee benefits payable 502.02 527.20
Other payables and acervals * 64.05 62.79
Total other current financial liabilities a62.85 603.44
Total other financial liabilities 662.85 605.44
* Includes vmbilled dues having ageing of less than one year.
18. Financial instruments by eategory
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Particulars VIPL WVIOCI ::::ortised FVIPL VIOCL c,::rt.mised
Financial assets:
Investments
-Equity insiruments 0.03 - - 0.03 - -
Trade receivables - - 1,525.96 - - 1,218.08
Cash and cash equivalents - - 566.81 - - 546,72
Other financial asscts - - 603.43 - - 38230
Total finuncial asses 0.03. - 2,696.20 0.03 - 2,183.00
Financial liabilities:
Trade payables - - ' 104.74 - - 79.69
Borrowings - - 25494 - - 0.81
Lease liabilities - - 50.32 - - 44 .61
Cther financial liakilities - - 662.85 - - 6505.44
Total Enancial liabilities - - 1,072 85 - - 730.55
Fair value hierarchy
The assets and liabilities measored at fair value on a recuning basis and the basis for that measorement is as below:
' March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Icvel 3
inputs inputs inputs inputs inputs inputs
Financial assets:
Investments carried at FVTPL - - 0.03 - - 0.03
Total finarncial assets - - 0.03 - - .03

Valuation methodofogies Investments:

The Compatny’s investments consist primarily of investment in equity shares of unguoted companies. Management has considered cost (o be approximating
“to Fair value considering the immateriality of sch investments

Following tablos presents the change in Level 3 financial aascts for the yoor ended Mereh 31, 2022 and Murch 31, 2021

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
|Bakawce at the begineing of the year 0.03 0.03
Changes doring the yesr - -
Closing at the end of the year a3 0.3

31




Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

All amounty gre in INR million, unless stated otherwise
Fair Values of asscts and liabilities carried at amortised costs are as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Carrying value Fairvalue |Carryingvaloe | Fair value
Finanrial ssseis: '
Trade receivables 1,525.96 1,52596 1,218.08 1,218.08
Cash and cash equivatents 566.81 566.81 546.72 546.72
Other financial assets 603.43 603.43 388.20 388.20
{Total financial assets 2,696.20 2,696.20 2,153.00 2,153.80
Financial liakilities:
Trade payables 104.74 104,74 79.69 79.69
Berrawings - floating rate 254,94 254.04 - -
Borrowings - fixed rate - - 0.81 0.81
Lease liahilities 50.32 50.32 44,61 44 61
Other financial liabilities 662.85 662,85 605.44 605.44

The Company has assessed that the fair value of cash and cash equivalent, trade receivables, security deposit, other financial assets, capital creditors, trade
payables and other financial liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-taam maturities of these instruments.

19. Provisions

Partieulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2621
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 27) -Now-cerrent Current Non-current "Current
Geatuity §88.84 74.92 -84.96 104.58
Compenszated absences - 41.84 - 41.38
Total 188,84 116.76 84.96 145.96
20. Other Eabilities
Particelars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2023
Other non-carrent liabilities - -
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues payable 267.59 22599
Total ather current lizbilitics 2567.59 125.79
Total other liabilities 267.59 225.79
21. Governmceat graat
Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
As at the keginning of the year - -
Received during the year 4.01 2726
Released to the satement of profit and loss {4.01) (27.26)
._ As at the end of the year o - -
Current - -
Non-current - -

The Company is availing of benefits under a govemment scheme - Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Protsahan Yojana (PMRPY) wherein the Central Governmment is

paying the employer's contribution towards Employee Pension Scheme / Provident Fund in respect of new employees joined tilf March 31, 2019 meeting
specified critetia. The grant is paid by the Govemment on a monthly basis in the firs three years of employment of eligible new employees on filfilment of
certain conditions. Aecordingly; such Government Grant is taken to profit or Joss when the conditions are met and the grants are received.

22. Revenue from operations

- [Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Rendering of services

From housekeeping, cleaning, facility operation and management services §,343.84 7,069.07

Todal rendering of services §,343.84 7,069.07

Other operating revenues 12.26 419

|Totat- $,356.10 7.073.17

Revenue from operations 8,356.10 707317

The Company's revenue is from rendering of services towands facility management services and has been Tecognized over the period of e fom the

coniracts with customers, located in Indian geography.

 The following table provides information about unbilled revenue from contract with customers
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Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Opening balance 350.25 47%.62
Transfers frem unbilled revenue recognised at the beginning of the year to receivables (350.25) (479.62)
Increase due to revenue recagnised during the year, excluding amowunts billed during the vear 56090 350.25
Closing bafanrce 560.50 350.25

23. Other income

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 202)
Intercst income from financial assets at amortized cost 23.28 13.83
Interest income on tax retunds - 1.65
Total 23.28 15.4%
24. Oher gain / (loss)

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Net gainf{loss) on sale of property, plant and equipment - 0.04
Total - 0.04

25, Cost of materials consumed

Particnlars March 31,2022 | Marck 31, 2021
" | Purchases of chemicals, consumables, and others 118.49° 104.59
Uniforms and related inventories - 10.07
Total 118.49 115.06
26. Changes in inventory of stock in trade
Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Invendory at the beginning of the year - -
Inventory at the end of the year 393 -
Changes in inventory of stock-in-trade - (increase)/decrease (3.93) -

-27. Emplayee benefits expense

#) Employee benefits expense inclade:

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Salaries, wages ind bonus 6,i68.81 5,316.19
Contribution to provident and other funds F70.41 646.77
Government grants (Note 21) (4.{]1j {27.26}
Employee share-based payment expense * 21.56 0.53
Gratoity expense 44,70 36.84
“{Leave compensation 314.62 276.09
Staff welfare expenses 32.30 16.26
Total 7,348.39 5,265.42

- charged to the Company by the parent and is reimbursed by the Company

- by Unfunded schente — Leave obligations
Leave abligations cover the Companys liability for earned leave.

* * Cerlain employees of the Company have been granted share options issued by the Parent Company, SIS Limited, The cost of such share options is cross

The provision for leave ohligations is presensed as current, since the Company does not have an uncenditional nght to defer setflement of any of these
abligations. However, based on past experience, the Company does not expect all employees to take the full anvount of accrucd leave within the next 12

months. The following amount reflects leave that is not expected to be taken within the next £2 months;

Particnlars

March 31, 2022

Mnarch 31, 2021

._ Current leave obligation not caxpected to be seftled within next 12 months

1.99

1.65
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EUnfunded schemes:
Particolars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Present valve of wnfunded obligations 41.84 4138
Expenses to be recognized in the statement of profit and Toss 314.62 276.0%
Discount rate (per annum) 5.30% 4.60%
Satary escalation rate (per anmumn} ' §.00% 7.10%

Defined contribution pians

The Company has certain defined contribution plans:

Contributions are made to provideot fund for employees at the rate of 12% of the salary (subject to a limit of INR 15,000 salary} as per segulations. The
contributions are mads tr a statutory providens fund administersd by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and
it has no flrther contractual or constructive obiigations in this regard.

Further contributions are made in respect of Employees™ State Insurance Scheme at the rate of 3.25% of the gross pay as per regulations. The coniributions
are towards medical benefits provided by the Govemment to the employees. The contributions are made to employees’ state insurance authorities administered
by the Government. The obligation of the Company is limited to the amount contributed and it has no further contractual or constructive obligations in this

Tegard,
Contributions to provident fund and employees” state insurance scheme are recopnised as an expense as they become payable which coincides with the period

- during which relevant employee services are received. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset o an extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is avaifable.

Mawrch 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
FT041 646,77

Particulars

Expense recogtised during the period towards defined contribution plans

¢) Defined benefits plans
In accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for & lump sum payment to eligible employees, at retirement or tniination
of emplayment based on the last drawn salary and years of employment with ithe Company. The amount of gratuity payable on retirement/ termination is
the employee’s last drawn basic salary per month computed proportionately for 15 days salary tmultipted by the number of years of service. The gratuity p]an'
is un-fitnded. .

The following tables summarizes the components of net benefit expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and the non-fimded status and amounts

recoghised inthe balance sheet for the respective plans:
Expendifure te be recognized during the year:

FParticolars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2621
Current service cost 3839 30.96
Interest cost 631 5.38
Total amaeunt recognised in profit or loss 44.70 36.54
. Remeasurenments .
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts included in interest income - -
Loss / (gain) from changes in financial assymptions (10.70) 241
Loss / {gain) from changes in demographic assumptions 58.08 -
Experience loss f (gain) {4.85) .85
Total loss / (gain) recognised in other comprebensive income 42.53 12.26
Change in present value of defined henefit obligation is summarized below .
Reconciliation of opening and closing balances of Defined Benefit Obligation March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
‘|Defined benefit obligation af the beginning of year ' 189.54 150.18
Cwrrent service cost 38.39 30.96
- {Interest cost 6.31 5.88
Rereasurements 42.53 12.26
Benefits paid (12.43) (5.74)
Liakiléties assumedi(settled) {0.58) -
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Dusters Total Solutions Services Private Limited

The principal assumplions used in determining gratuity and post-empioyment benefit obligations for the Coipany's plans are shown below:

Principal Assumptions;

Principal actuarial assnmptions March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Discount rate 530% 4.60%

Fulure salary increase
|- Mon-billing / indirect employees 2.00% 7.10%
- Billing /direct employees 5.00% 6.00%
Aftrition rate

Billing employees

- Age from 21-30 vears 52.00% 71.00%
- 31-40 42.00% 71.00%
- 41-50 40.00% 71.00%
- 51 & above 43.00% 71.00%
Non hilling employees .

- Age from 21-30 years 24.00% 27.00%

- 3140 21.00% 27.00%

- 41.50 24.00% 27.00%
- 51 & atove 11.00% 27.00%

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below;

Sensitivity Analyais

Assnmptions March 31,2022 | M=arch 31, 2021
Discount rate

0.5% incrense {1.53%) 1.86%
0.5% decrease C157% 1.91%
Future salary increases

0.5% inerease 1.53% 1.82%

- The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in assumption while holding 2l ether assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes

in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When caiculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the
satne method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected credit unit method at the end of the reporting period) has been

- applied as when catculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheat.

Risk expoéure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company is exposed to anumber of risks, the most significant of which are market volatility, changes in inllation, changes

in inferest raes, rising longevity, changing economic environment and regulatory changes.

Defined benefif liability:
The expected maturity analysis of undiscounted grofuity benafits is os fallows:

Particulars

Maxrch 31, 2022

Merch 31, 2021

The weighted average dwation of the post-employment bencfit plan obligations {in ycars)

3.10

2.00

Mafurity profile: March 31, 2322 | March 31, 2621
Less than a year 7452 104.58
Between 1-2 years 63,72 48,49
Between 2-5 years 117.66 42,28
Over 5 Years 5%.09 13.63
Total 31539 208.96 |

d) Parliament has approved the Code ot Wages, 2019 and the Cade on Social Security, 2020 which govern, and are likely 0 impact, the contributions by
“the Company towards certain employee benefits. The Code has been published in the Gazette of India. The effective date of these Codes has not yet been
nolified and the Company will assess the impact of these codes as and when they come into effect and wilf provide for the appropriate impact in its financial

sfatements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective.

.28. Finance costs

Particulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Interest expenses 23.33 9.01
Interest on fease liability 519 531
Other finaoce costs * 549 0.44
Tatal 34.01 1536

" *Includes commitment charges, loan processing charges, guarantee charges, loan facili
' ' 35

lon charges, other ancillary costs incurred in connection
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with borrowings other than finance casts that do not meet the definition of fransaction costs,

2%. Depreciation apd amortisation expenses

Dsters Total Solutios Sevie

Particulars March 31, 2022 { March 31, 2021
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 3) 62,14 62.86
Amortization of intangible assets (Note 4) 182 4.95
Total 66.96 67.81

30. Other expenses

March 31, 2022

Particunlars March 31, 2021
Training expenses 5.65 2.69
Site tnafntenance and sub-coniracting expenses 354.34 279.4%
Selling expenses 025 0.52
Administrative expenses:
-Travelling and conveyance 16.91 817
-Postage and telephone 4.17 571
-Stationary and printing 3.24 2.84
-Rent * 24.52 21.91
-Rates and taxes 7.83 5.42
-Inswrance 0.52 1.13
-Repairs and maintenance:
- Machinery 10.03 8.03
~ Others 2217 £7.33
-Payments (0 auditors (Refer details below) 2.36 2.36
-Legal and professional fees 1541 9.11
-Allowance for expected credit loss 0.04 64.91
«Expense towards corporate social responsibility (Refer details below) 0.20. 9.64
-(rther adntinistration and general expenses® 27.56 8.75
- | Total 495,80 448,01
* Rent expenses are pertaining to short-term leases and low value assets.
Payment to avditors
Parficalars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
As anditor:
Statutory audit fees 1.90 1.90
Tax audit fees 0.20 0.20
In other capacity:
{Others 0.26 026
Total payment te auditors 2,36 2.36
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Details of CSR expenditure

Particulars

March 31,2022

‘March 31, 2021

{a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year

7.40

%.18

{(b) Amonnt spent during the year:”

(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset

(if) On pwrposes other than (i) above

0.20

.64

{c) Thc natnre of CSR activities undertaken by the company

(i) Promoting education to children inchuding primary, secondary and university education, building
schools, colleges and training institutions inchuding provision for full time residential institutions and
fufl student sponsorship, promoting and sponsoring girl education at all levels, women education and
self-employment training, other educational projects

2.60

(if) Local community health check camps, building hospitals, clinics, diagnostic centres and
associated infrastructure, blood donation camps and other specific ailment camps.

7.04

{I) Adjusted apgainst excess amount spent during previbus years'

0.46

(g) The amount of shortfall ut the end of the year ont of the amount required to be spent
by the company during the year

6.74

(b} The excess amount spent over and above the amount required to be spent by the
company during the year

045

(i) The total of previons years' shortfall amounts

31. Earnings per share (EPS)

A reconciliation of profit for the year and equity shares used in the computation of basic and diluted earnings per equity share is set out below:

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Profit atiributable to equity holders of the Company for basic earnings 394,09 71.93

Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company adjusied for the effect of dilution 394.08 71.93

Weighted averape number of equity shares for basic EPS (Mumnbers) 2,801,666 2,801,666

Weighted average nomber of equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 2,801,666 2,801,666

Nominal value of equity shares (INR) 10.00 10.00
Earnings per share -

-+ Basic {INR) 140.66 25.67

- Dilued NR) 140,66 25.67

32. Dividend distribntmn made and proposed

Proposed dividends en equity shares are subject to approval at the annual general meeting and are not recognised as a liability (including DDT theraon) as
at the reporting date. No dividend has been proposed by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021.

33, Commitment and contingencies

a) Capital Commitment

The estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (nef of capitai advances) and not provided for:

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be exccuted on capital account {(net of capital

_{advances) and not provided for

b) Contircgent lizbilities

Particulars

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Clatms against the Company not acknowledged as debt:

- Litigation matiers with respect to direct taxes

67.18

3.06

- Litigatior matters with respect indirect taxes

Oiher money for which the Company is contingently liable

Total

67.18

3.06

During the finencial year ended March 31, 2021, the Company has received favourable order from the High Court of Kamnataka at Bengaluru in relation to
belated remittance of employee contribution towards provident fund and Employees’ State Insurance for the Assessmert Year 2012-13. In this repard, the
‘High Coust of Kaznataka has rejected the appeal filled under Section 260-4 of the Income Tax Act, 1961 by the Income Tax department against the order
passed by the Income Tax Appeltate Tribunal.

The Company recards a liability when it is both probable that a loss has been incurred and the amount can be. reasonably estimated. Significant
. Judgment is required to determine both probability and the estimated amount. The Companty reviews these provisions periodically and adjusts these
provisions accordingly to reflect the impact of negdtiations, settlements, rulings, advice of lepal counsel, and wpdated information. Currently, the
Company has not provided for any of the above mentioned cases as the Company believes that they have 2 high chance of winning these litigations.
In particulars, the Company believes that the amount or estimable range of reasonably possible loss, will not, either individually or in the aggregate,
have a materiat adverse effect on its business, financial position, resulls of the Company, or cash flows with Tespect to loss contingencies for legal
and oiher contingencies as at March 31, 2022,
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Disputed claims apainst the Company, inctuding claims raised by the tax authorilies and which are pending in.appeal /eourt and for which no reliable
¢stimate can be made of the amount of the abligation, are not provided for inthe accounts. However, the present oblipation, if any, as a result of past
events with 2 possibility of outfiow of resources, when reliably estimable, is recagnised in the accounts as an expense as and when such obligation
crystallizes,

34.  Business combinations and acquisition of non-controRing interests

Acquisition of Adls Enterprises Private Limited (AEPL)

Effective March 0, 2021, the Company acquired all of the remaining shareholding of 49% in Adis Enterprises Private Limited (“AEPL"), a subsidiary of
the Company, for an aggregate consideration of INR 9.81 million which resulted in AEPL becoming a whelly owned subsidiary of the Company.

Effective February 01, 2020, the Company had scquired 51% of the outstanding equity shares of AEPL for an apgrepate consideration of INR .61 million.

35, Operating segment -
The Company is required to disclose segment information based on the “management approach” as defined in Ind AS 108- CQperating segments, which in
how the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) evaluates the Company’s performance and silocates resources baséd on the analysis of the various
performance indicators. In the case of the Company, the CODM reviews the results of the Company as a whole as the Company is primarily engaged in the
business of rendering facility management services it India. Accordingly, the Company is a single CGU, hence single segment Company. The information
as required under Ind AS 108 is available directly from the financial statements, hence no separate disclosures have been made.

{This space has been intendionatly left blank)
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37. Financial risk management
The Company’s principal financizl liabifities, comprise [oans and borrowings, trade and othet payables, and financial guarantee contracts. The main purpose

of these financial liabilities is to finance the Company’s operations and o provide guarantees to support the financing of the operations of its subsidiaries,
Joint ventures and associates. The Company's principal financial assets include trade and ather receivables, and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly
from its operations and loans, security and other deposits,

- The Company’s operations expose it 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s focus is to reduce volatility in financial statements while
maintaining balance between providing predictability ir the Compeny’s business plan along with reasonable pasticipation in market movement. It is the
Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undertaken.

Market risk
Mearket eisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash Bows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risk mainly

comprises currency risk and inferest rate risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk include loans and borrowings, loans and dcpmts given, F¥TOCI
investments and derivative financial instrumenis.

Foreign currency risk
Foreigt currency risk is the risk that the fa1r value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates which

arises from assets and liabilitics denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of the respective entities and foreign cuarency revenue and
cash flows The Company’s exposuse to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company”s operating activities {when revenue
or expense {s denominated in a foreign currency) and the Company’s net inveslments in foreign subsidiaries.

The exchange rate between the Indian Rupee and fércign currencies has fluctuated in recent years and may continue to do so in the fiture. Consequently,
“the resudts of the Company”s operations may be affected as the Indian Rupee appreciates/depreciates against these currencies.

There are no foreign currency denominated financial assets and financial liabilities as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 202t.
Interest rate risk
Tnterest rate risk primarily arises from floating rate borrowing, including various revolving and other lines of credit. Trterest rate risk is the risk that the fair

value or future cach flows of & financial instnement will fluctuate because of changes in market inferest mtes. The Company’s exposire o the  risk of
changes in market interest rafes arises on borrowings with fleating interest rate which is not material.

The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes af the end of the reporting peried are as follows;

Particulars ' - March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Variable rate borrowings: -

- Loan repayble on demand 25494 -
Fixed rate borrowings

- WVehiclz loan . 0.31
Total 254.54 .81

The Compary’s fixed rate borrowings are camed at amortised cost. They are therefore not subject to interest rate sk as defined in Ind AS 107, since neither
the carmying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest rates,

Profit or Joss is sensitive ta higher/lower intercst expense front variable rate borrowings as a result of changes in interest rates,

Partieulars March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021
Interest rates - increase by 25 basis points ’ 0.64 -
Interest rates - decrease by 25 basis points * (0.64) -

*Holding all othier variables constant

Credit visk
Gkt aisk arises Gom the possibility that counterparties may not be able to sattle their obligations as agreod resulting in & financial loss. The primary

exposure to credit risk atises Gom Trade teceivables and unbiled fevenue. These are unsecured and are managed by the Company through a system of
periodically assessing the firancial reliability of customers, taking into account the financial condition, cw rent econemic trends, and analysis of historical
* bad debts and ageing of acoounts receivables. There are two customers which accounted for more than 10% of the accounts receivable as of March 31, 2022
‘and March 31, 2021, respectively and revenues for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 21, 2021, respectively. There is no significant concentraiion
- of eredit risk. The Company uses the ECL method to assess the loss allowance for Trade receivables and unbilled reveuue taking into account primarily the

historical trends and analysis of bad debts.

The eredit risk for financinl asscts other than trade receivables / unbifled revenue we censidend low.

Significant estimates and judgeménts

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment provision for financial assets disclosed above are based on assumptions sbout risk of default and expected foss mates. The Company uses

Judgemment in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Company’s past histery mnd existing market

conditions, The company estimates Joss arising on trade receivables 25 a percentage of sales based on past trends and such loss is directly debited to revenue
- instead of creating a provision for impairment of receivables.
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Financial instruments and cash deposits
Creditrisk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company’s policy.
Surplus funds are invested in bank fixed deposits or used to temporarily reduce the balance of cash credit accounts to optimize interest costs,

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with financial labilities. The Company consistently

- generates sulficient cash flows fiom operations and has access to multiple sources of funding to meet its financial obligations and maintain adequate liquidity

for use.

The below table summarises the Company s long-term debt that wifl maturs in less than one year based on the carrying value of borrowings reflected in the
financial statements.

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021

Company’s long-term debt : . 0.&1

Company’s long-term detd that wilt mature in less that one year from rc]im'ting period - 0.81
0.00 % 100.00%

The Company has assessed the concentration of risk with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it to be iow. The Company has access 1o 2 sufficient
variety of sources of funding and significant portion of short term debt maturing within 12 months cant be rofled over with existing fenders. The Company
betieves that it has sufficient working capital and cash accruals to meet its business requirements and other obligations,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial tiabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments,
As at March 31, 2022

Particulars On demand Less .ﬂ“m 3 3 to 12 I to 5 years > 5 years Total
months months
Borrowings 25494 - - - - 254,94
Lease liability - 6.38 19.14 31.02 - 56.54
Other financial liabilities - 662.85 - - - 662 85
Trade payables . - 104.74 - - - 104.74
As at March 31, 2021
. |Particulars On demand Less than 3 3to 12 I to 5 years >3 years Total
months months
Borrowings - S 0.30 .51 - - 0.81
Lease liability - 4.55 13.65 33.48 - 5168
|Other financial liabilities - 605.44 - - - 605.44
Trade payables - 79.6%9 - - - 79.69

As o matter of policy, the Company does not carry out any hedging activities,
There have been no default in servicing borrowings and/ or breaches in loan covenants,

The entity has the following financial assets at FVTPL which are mandatorily measured at FYTPL in accordance with the tequirements of Ind AS 103,

Particolars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Financial assets:

Investments in equily instruments 0.03 0.403
Total financial assefs 0.43 0.03

- The entity has the following financial assets which are subject to the impairment requirements of Fnd AS 109,

from these assets, the Company believes that there is no provision required 10 be made for impairment |osses

on these assats.

On assessment of the future cash flows arising

Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31,2021
Financial Assets:
-|Other financial assets 603.43 3E820
1 Total 403.43 3838.20
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A} Additional capital disclosure
For the purpose of the Company’s capmi roanagement, capital includes issued equity capital, share premiu, all other equity reserves attributable to the
equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to maximise shareholder value and support its srategies
and operating requirements. The key objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structurs with a focus on
total equity to uphold investor, creditor, and customer confidence and to ensure future development of its business. The Company determines the capital

-requirement based on annual operating plans and long-tetmn and other strategic investment plans. The funding requirements for the Company’s operations

ate generally met through operating cash flows generated and supplemented by long-term and working capital borrowings from banks.
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to:

a) safeguard its ability to continue as & going concam, so that it can continue to provide returns for sharsholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and

b) Maintin an optimel capital structure to optimise the cost of capital,

The Company manages its capital sttucture and makes edjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requitements of the financial covenants
to which it is subject. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return eapital to sharcholders
or issne new shares. The Company moniters capital using a Ratio, which is Net Debt divided by EBITDA. The Company defines Net Debt as borrowings
and lease liability less cash and cash equivalents including bank balance and deposits irrespactive of their duration/ maturity.

" |Particulars March 31,2022 | March 31, 2021
Borrowings (Note 14) 254.94 0.81
Lease liability ' 50.32 44.61

. Cash and cash equivalents , ather bank balances and deposits (including margin money) (566.85)| (546.72)
Net Debt ) {261.59)| (501.38)

|eBrA ' 385.86 244.68
Net debt to EBITDA ratio (0.68) (2.05)

In order 1o achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other things, aitns to ensute that it simultaneously meets financial
covenants attached to its borrowings. Breaches in meeting the financial covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings, There
have been no breaches in the financial covenants of any borrowing in the current year,

B) Analytical ratios

Ratio- Numerator Denominator March 31, 2022 | March 31, 2021

Current ratio ' Current asset Current liabilities ' 1.90 2.01
Debt-equity ratio Total debt* Sharcholders' equity. 0.12 0.00
Debt Service Coverage ratio Earning befor interest and taxes | Debt service ** 13.67 19.85
Return on equity ratio Net profits after faxes Average shareholders’ equity 20.26% 4.15%

Trade receivables turnover ratio | Revenue from operations Average irade receivables _ 6.09 5.19

" |Net capital tunover ratio Revenue from operations Averape working capital 7.05 6.95
Met profit ratio Net profits after taxes Revenue from operations 4.72% 1.02%
Raturn on capital employed Eamning befor interest and taxes | Average capital employed **% 20.39% 11.85%

Revenue growth and cost efficiency along with working caplial improvement has resuited improvement in ratios.

*Tatal deht = civrent borrowings + nen-current barravings
“wDebr service = Interest expense + Current maturittes of long-term debt
*#2Capital employed = Total equity + Net debt
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